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          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Good morning. My

          3  name is Diana Reyna, and I am Chair of the Committee

          4  on Rules, Privileges and Elections. I would like to

          5  also recognize the Rules Committee members who are

          6  present here today.

          7                 We have Chairman of the Finance

          8  Committee, Council Member Weprin from Queens,

          9  Council Member Melinda Katz from Queens, Council

         10  Member Inez Dickens from Manhattan, Council Member

         11  Jessica Lappin from Manhattan, Council Member Dan

         12  Garodnick from Manhattan. Sitting in front of us on

         13  the floor, Council Member Tony Avella from Queens,

         14  Council Member Erik Dilan from Brooklyn, Council

         15  Member Leroy Comrie from Queens, Council Member

         16  Yvette Clarke from Brooklyn, Council Member Lewis

         17  Fidler from Brooklyn. Council Member Robert Jackson

         18  from Manhattan is sitting right behind me, who is

         19  not the Public Advocate.

         20                 I'd like to welcome our new Counsel

         21  to this Committee, Barbara Butler, who has just

         22  joined. This is her first hearing. So, welcome, Ms.

         23  Butler, and thank you for all your work on this

         24  first hearing you have today.

         25                 I'd like to thank Chuck Davis, as
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          2  well as Crystal, who are also supporting staff.

          3                 Today the Rules Committee will be

          4  considering the following matters: The appointment

          5  of Margery H. Perlmutter to the New York City

          6  Landmarks Preservation Commission. A resolution

          7  approving Council membership changes to certain

          8  Standing Committees and considering the proposed

          9  Rules changes which are part of the lobbying reforms

         10  the Speaker has been working on with the

         11  Administration that seek to reduce the impact of the

         12  lobbying culture and special interests in City Hall

         13  by strengthening the integrity of City government.

         14                 At that time the Speaker announced a

         15  number of changes to the Council's own rules to

         16  explicitly limit physical access by lobbyists from

         17  locations on the Council's side of City Hall, where

         18  members are conducting business such as the

         19  non-public areas of the Speaker's Office, the

         20  Council lounge and the floor of the Chambers and

         21  Committee Room during Stated and special meetings.

         22                 These changes to the Council rules

         23  implement these reforms. First, before us there is

         24  one candidate for our review. Her name is Margery

         25  Harriet Perlmutter, a Manhattan resident who is
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          2  being appointed by the Mayor to the Landmarks

          3  Preservation Commission for the remainder of a

          4  three-year term that expires on June 28th, 2008.

          5                 Ms. Perlmutter will replace Vicky

          6  Match Soona, who has been serving in a hold-over

          7  capacity since June 28th, 2002. Ms. Perlmutter is

          8  both a registered architect and an attorney in the

          9  State of New York. If appointed, she will be

         10  assuming the position as one of the Board's

         11  architects.

         12                 Before I ask Counsel to swear in Ms.

         13  Perlmutter, I'd like to briefly describe the

         14  functions and structure of the Landmarks

         15  Preservation Commission.

         16                 The New York City Landmarks

         17  Preservation Commission which consists of 11

         18  members, is responsible for establishing and

         19  regulating landmarks, portions of landmarks,

         20  landmark sites and interior landmarks, scenic

         21  landmarks and historic districts, and also regulates

         22  alterations to designed buildings -- designated

         23  buildings, excuse me.

         24                 The Charter requires that the

         25  Commission membership include at least three
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          2  architects, one historian qualified in the field,

          3  one City planner or landscape architect, and one

          4  realtor.

          5                 By Statute, the Commission's

          6  membership must have at least one residence from

          7  each of the five boroughs. The Mayor appoints

          8  members of the Commission for staggered three-year

          9  terms.

         10                 Each member continues to serve as a

         11  Commissioner until his or her successor is appointed

         12  and qualified. The Mayor designates one of the

         13  members to serve as Chair of the Commission and

         14  another to serve as Vice Chair. Both of these

         15  appointees serve until a successor is designated.

         16  Members other than the Chair serve without

         17  compensation.

         18                 Again, I stress to you, this

         19  position, other than the Chair, is without

         20  compensation, but are reimbursed for expenses

         21  necessarily incurred in the performance of their

         22  duties. The Chair's salary is currently $157,421.

         23  The Commission appoints a full-time Executive

         24  Director and may employ technical experts and such

         25  other employees as may be required to perform its
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          2  duties.

          3                 The Commission is required to provide

          4  opportunities for comment in advance of any hearing

          5  on a proposed designation.

          6                 In addition, the Commission may at

          7  any time make recommendations to the City Planning

          8  Commission regarding amendments to the zoning

          9  resolution, provisions that apply to improvements in

         10  a historic district.

         11                 The Commission's duties also include

         12  determining whether a proposed alteration or

         13  demolition affecting a landmark is consistent with

         14  the landmarks law.

         15                 In instances where the Commission

         16  determined that the proposed change complies with

         17  the law, it grants a certificate of appropriateness,

         18  otherwise the Commission may deny the applicant's

         19  request.

         20                 I'd like to take this time to open

         21  testimonies that will be read into the record by the

         22  public and those who may be interested in being a

         23  part of this process in this hearing at this time.

         24                 As I call your name I'd like to

         25  invite you to either side of this podium where the
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          2  mike will be accessible to you to read your

          3  testimony.

          4                 I'd like to call up Seri Warden. I

          5  apologize if I make any mistakes to your names.

          6  Friends of the Upper East Side. And I will alternate

          7  one specific member of the public in favor and one

          8  in opposition. So, please state your position.

          9                 I'm sorry, Ms. Warden, if you could

         10  just give me an opportunity to go back to the

         11  candidate. I just need to swear the candidate in,

         12  and allow her to make the statement so that she has

         13  her statement read into the record, and the public

         14  will then make their statements in reaction to her.

         15                 Thank you. Just one second. You can

         16  stay there or go back to your seat. Which ever makes

         17  you comfortable. I'd like to ask Counsel to swear in

         18  the candidate. Thank you.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you swear to

         20  tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         21  truth?

         22                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I do.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Perlmutter, if

         24  you could just read your statement. Thank you.

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Thank you. Good
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          2  morning, Chair Reyna, and Council members. I am

          3  honored to appear before you today at this hearing

          4  to consider my appointment as a Commissioner to the

          5  Landmarks Preservation Commission.

          6                 As I hope you will see from my

          7  background as a New Yorker, preservationist,

          8  architect, urbanist and Land Use lawyer, I deeply

          9  believe that the preservation of the City's historic

         10  structures and urban fabric is essential to the

         11  health and future of our great City.

         12                 First, I am a New Yorker, raised in

         13  Greenwich Village, and a graduate of the Bank Street

         14  School for Children, Elizabeth Irwin High School,

         15  Columbia University School of Architecture, and

         16  Fordham University School of Law. I have been a

         17  resident of Greenwich Village, Cobble Hill, the

         18  Upper West and Upper East Sides, and a member of a

         19  community garden.

         20                 I have been a historic

         21  preservationist in one way or other since my early

         22  college days when as a photographic assistant, I

         23  photographed and recorded for the New York Landmarks

         24  Conservancy, the interiors of the Vallard Houses on

         25  Madison Avenue, which is now the entrance to the
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          2  Palace Hotel, and the home to the Municipal Arts

          3  Society, and Cass Gilbert's Customs House on Lower

          4  Broadway, not far from here.

          5                 I later interned at the Customs House

          6  for the Conservancy, in their ultimately successful

          7  efforts to preserve the building from demolition.

          8                 I am also an architect and an

          9  urbanist, and since my days as an architecture

         10  student at Columbia have been passionate about the

         11  life pulse and growth of cities.

         12                 I have traveled very extensively

         13  throughout Europe, Asia and South America, and in

         14  many parts of the Middle East. In each of the great

         15  cities to which I have traveled, I have learned that

         16  preservation of the city's historic fabric is

         17  essential to the creation and maintenance of a great

         18  and vital city.

         19                 In Paris I became impassioned by the

         20  subject of the adaptive use of the country's

         21  extraordinary river barges, and launched an

         22  extensive study about how these great floating

         23  structures were being converted from sand and grain

         24  transporters to schools, houses, theaters and

         25  restaurants.
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          2                 These new uses resulted in preserving

          3  the active life of the river, and prevented the

          4  destruction of many of the barges themselves, which

          5  were being lost along with the mariners who work

          6  them to train and truck transportation systems.

          7                 At the same time, I taught a class in

          8  the history of Parisian architecture, beginning in

          9  Roman times, and concluding in the late 20th

         10  Century.

         11                 These studies helped me understand

         12  how the ancient City of Paris is the oldest

         13  structure dating from the first century has

         14  approached the protection of its historic fabric and

         15  patrimony, while nevertheless allowing the City to

         16  change and grow.

         17                 Last year in Istanbul I was a

         18  participating lecturer for the Historic City and

         19  Villages Subcommittee of the International Historic

         20  Preservation Organization ICOMOS and delivered a

         21  paper with my colleague Judith Saltzman, who is a

         22  preservation architect on historic preservation in

         23  New York City. Participating lecturers from around

         24  the world presented papers on historic preservation

         25  issues of concern in their countries, and architects
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          2  and elected officials of Istanbul showed us how that

          3  City struggles to protect its great architectural,

          4  urban and cultural heritage.

          5                 Our paper, which was directed toward

          6  an international rather than a local audience,

          7  considered how new development pressures are

          8  affecting historic neighborhoods and describe the

          9  different State, federal and local regulatory

         10  processes that are intended to protect the City's

         11  architectural.

         12                 Using case studies in different New

         13  York City neighborhoods, we concluded in the paper

         14  that the New York City landmarks law was the only

         15  effective tool for ensuring the preservation of our

         16  City's historic fabric.

         17                 In addition, I am an affordable

         18  housing advocate, and as an architect had the unique

         19  opportunity to work as an outside consultant to the

         20  New York State Division of Housing and Community

         21  Renewal under the Housing Trust Fund, and low-income

         22  housing tax credit programs.

         23                 At that agency, we determined based

         24  upon urban context, building design and cost

         25  criteria whether to fund proposed affordable housing
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          2  projects in all of the five boroughs.

          3                 Once funded, I served as the agency's

          4  supervising construction consultant to ensure that

          5  the completed projects met our expectations for

          6  quality housing.

          7                 Among the many great projects to

          8  which I contributed as a DHCR consultant in the five

          9  boroughs, was the splendid restoration of the late

         10  19th Century Astor Rowe Houses on 130th Street near

         11  Fifth Avenue. Through the essential participation of

         12  the New York Landmarks Conservancy's Affordable

         13  Housing Development Grant Program.

         14                 In addition to providing many new

         15  affordable housing units, the Astor Row renovation

         16  in 1993 stimulated the restoration and development

         17  of other buildings on the block and contributed

         18  enormously to Harlan's economic and physical

         19  rejuvenation. Proved, I find, that the careful

         20  preservation of historic properties can be key in

         21  fostering enduring economic development of

         22  deteriorated communities and neighborhoods.

         23                 With the encouragement of the DHCR,

         24  HPD and a private grant, I personally developed a

         25  program with the Dean of the Architecture Department

                                                            16

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  at the Parsons School of Design, in which

          3  architecture students designed housing for a real

          4  client, Community Access, Inc., a special needs

          5  low-income housing provider, that was intended to be

          6  constructed on a real vacant HPD-owned site in the

          7  East Village.

          8                 My work with DHCR led to my own work

          9  as a community development architect and with my own

         10  architecture office, I designed and supervised the

         11  renovation and restoration of severely deteriorated

         12  19th century buildings in then struggling

         13  neighborhoods in Brooklyn and the Bronx, and

         14  produced over 200 units of low-income and special

         15  needs housing for a Brooklyn-based not-for-profit

         16  housing development company.

         17                 I also worked on projects that

         18  required LPC permits.

         19                 Today as a Land Use lawyer I have

         20  occasionally appeared before the LPC, and worked

         21  with LPC staff. Because of my background, I have the

         22  advantage of understanding the standards in the

         23  Landmarks Law, as well as my clients' programmatic

         24  and technical requirements, and so can guide my

         25  clients' designs in a way that would be most
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          2  appropriate and sensitive to maintaining the

          3  integrity of the historic property.

          4                 I am aware that some concerns have

          5  been raised related to my employment as a Land Use

          6  attorney, which I will address later.

          7                 In 2002, I was appointed a co-chair

          8  of Manhattan Community Board 8's Landmarks

          9  Committee.

         10                 Board 8 encompasses the area between

         11  East 59th and 96th Street, running west into Central

         12  Park, and East to include Roosevelt Island. As such,

         13  it is home to over 125 individual landmarks and six

         14  historic districts containing over 1,000 buildings,

         15  including many of New York City's most important

         16  cultural institutions.

         17                 The CB 8 Landmarks Committee hears

         18  all of the applications that come to LPC for

         19  Certificates of Appropriateness to modify buildings

         20  within the Community Board 8 area.

         21                 In some of our busiest months, we may

         22  hear up to 15 such applications, which range in

         23  complexity from signage and awning permits, facade

         24  modifications, rear-yard and rooftop additions, new

         25  construction projects by large institutional owners.
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          2                 Not infrequently a proposed project

          3  may be the subject of significant controversy, and

          4  meetings may be attended by 100 or more very

          5  concerned members of the public.

          6                 As a result of my experience as a CB

          7  8 Landmarks Committee Co-chair, I have heard

          8  presentations by owners and architects, listened to

          9  the concerns of interested neighbors and

         10  neighborhood groups, and offered recommendations on

         11  hundreds of applications for Certificates of

         12  Appropriateness in CB 8.

         13                 These are the same sort of

         14  presentations that applicants and neighbors make

         15  each month to LPC's commissioners. In rendering my

         16  opinion about the applications that come before the

         17  CB 8 Committee, I carefully consider each

         18  applicant's ideas, and the community's concerns and

         19  evaluate each proposal on a case-by-case basis.

         20                 I look at the proposal in light of

         21  the building's architecture, history, stylistic

         22  period, context, scale, relationship to its

         23  neighbors and historic district, the proposed design

         24  approach, relationships between formal elements and

         25  materials, technical, programmatic and planning
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          2  concerns, as well as any additional information

          3  provided on these subjects by members of the

          4  Committee or the public.

          5                 As I hope you can see from this brief

          6  summary of my background, I have spent most of my

          7  life working to ensure that New York remains a

          8  diverse and vibrant City that it should be.

          9                 I believe that the City's greatness

         10  depends on the preservation of its historic

         11  neighborhoods and structures.

         12                 Some have questioned my ability to

         13  serve as an impartial commissioner, given my

         14  employment with Bryan Cave LLP, my lawfirm. I have

         15  absolutely no doubt that should this body confirm my

         16  appointment to the Commission, I will serve as an

         17  objective and independent commissioner, deciding

         18  each of the applications before me based on

         19  historical context, precedent, architectural theory,

         20  technology, methodology and public process.

         21                 I have sought guidance from the

         22  City's Conflicts of Interest Board, and they have

         23  advised that I recuse myself from all matters before

         24  the Commission that concerned Bryan Cave, and that I

         25  never appear before the Commission on behalf of
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          2  Bryan Cave.

          3                 The Conflicts of Interest Board also

          4  advises that I recuse myself from all matters

          5  concerning my husband's architectural firm, Arte New

          6  York. Should the Council decide to confirm my

          7  appointment to the Commission, I am fully prepared

          8  to do both.

          9                 You should also be aware that the

         10  guidance provided to me by the Conflicts of Interest

         11  Board is no different from the guidance they have

         12  provided to other architects, planners and realtors

         13  to the Commission. If my appointment is confirmed, I

         14  will be resigning from service on Community Board 8.

         15                 I would also like to note that our

         16  firm, as a matter of fact, has very few matters that

         17  come before the Landmarks Commission, which holds

         18  hearings on over 600 applications every year.

         19                 I would need to recuse myself from

         20  only a very small portion of these matters, and

         21  would be able to vote on more than 98 percent of the

         22  applications that come before the LPC.

         23                 In addition, some people have raised

         24  concerns about a letter that I mistakingly sent to

         25  the community Board in December of last year. This
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          2  letter was a ministerial notice letter required by

          3  the Board of Standards and Appeals. It was a mistake

          4  which I rectified as soon as the error was

          5  discovered.

          6                 I recused myself from the Community

          7  Board's vote on the issue. It is the only time such

          8  a thing has happened in the four years that I have

          9  served on the community board. This kind of error

         10  will not occur in the future if I am appointed as a

         11  member to the Commission, because we are redoubling

         12  the efforts at my lawfirm to ensure that this type

         13  of error is not repeated.

         14                 There have also been concerns raised

         15  regarding my appearance in a lobbying report as a

         16  lobbyist for Bryan Cave. As a matter of practice,

         17  most Land Use attorneys throughout the City are

         18  registered lobbyists and my firm has a policy of

         19  listing its entire team of Land Use attorneys in

         20  their lobbyist report for each client.

         21                 While my name may have been listed in

         22  a lobbying report, in most instances I did not

         23  actually lobby the Landmarks Commission on behalf of

         24  those clients.

         25                 Thank you for your time, and I'd be
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          2  happy to respond to any questions you may have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

          4  Perlmutter.

          5                 I am going to indulge upon my

          6  colleagues, if you can just bear with us, we have a

          7  number of public citizens who would like to go on

          8  the record with testimony. We are limiting because

          9  of the number, and I will show you, of people who

         10  have signed up, to two minutes. So, if we can

         11  certainly come up to the podium as I had directed

         12  before, I would like to ask Seri Worden, Friends of

         13  the Upper East Side, Amanda Hiller from the

         14  Municipal Arts Society, followed by Christabel

         15  Gough, from the Society of the Architecture of the

         16  City, followed by Teri Slater, Defenders of the

         17  Historic Upper East Side, Simeon Bankoff from the

         18  Historic Districts Council, Judith Saltzman with

         19  Saltzman Architects, Kate Wood from Landmark West,

         20  Judith Schneider from East 64th Street, Roger Lang

         21  from New York Landmarks Conservancy, Lavin Beckelman

         22  from Third Avenue. If we can begin.

         23                 MS. WORDEN: Hello. My name is Seri

         24  Worden. I'm the Executive Director of Friends of the

         25  Upper East Side Historic Districts.
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          2                 Friends was founded in 1982 as an

          3  independent, not-for-profit membership organization

          4  dedicated to preserving the architectural legacy,

          5  livability, and sense of place of the Upper East

          6  Side.

          7                 Friends of the Upper East Side

          8  Historic District shares many of the concerns of our

          9  colleagues regarding the appointment of Margery

         10  Perlmutter to Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         11                 It is difficult to reconcile Ms.

         12  Perlmutter's appointment as a Landmarks Preservation

         13  Commissioner with the professional role as a member

         14  of the Land Use team of the lawfirm Bryan Cave,

         15  which frequently lobbies the LPC.

         16                 If appointed, Ms. Perlmutter's

         17  professional obligations could certainly be in

         18  conflict with the mandate of the LPC.

         19                 As a preservation advocacy group on

         20  the Upper East Side, Friends has been attending

         21  Community Board 8 Preservation Committee hearings

         22  for decades, and we appreciate the time and

         23  dedication that Board members devote to the civic

         24  forum.

         25                 For the last four years, Ms.
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          2  Perlmutter has been the co-chair of that Committee.

          3  We would like to thank Ms. Perlmutter for her

          4  professionalism and knowledge she has brought the

          5  Committee and Board.

          6                 In anticipation of this hearing and

          7  to better understand Ms. Perlmutter's view on

          8  preservation, Friends has conducted a study

          9  examining all the decisions that the Landmarks

         10  Committee of Community Board 8 has made over the

         11  last three years, as well as the voting record of

         12  the candidate.

         13                 All too often, Friends has disagreed

         14  with the positions taken by the candidate, and in

         15  many of those cases, the Landmarks Committee has

         16  also disagreed with her. In sum, it is difficult to

         17  support the candidacy of an applicant whose

         18  preservation standards are often contrary to ours.

         19                 Without going into too much minutia,

         20  one example was proposed adoption of a master plan

         21  for single pane windows in a large apartment

         22  building, a type of alteration always opposed by

         23  Friends and rarely approved.

         24                 Another example ended in the loss of

         25  a historic recessed storefront on Madison Avenue,
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          2  eliminating a signature detail that has contributed

          3  to the internationally recognized character of the

          4  street.

          5                 Finally, we have particularly been

          6  troubled by the number of rooftop and rear-yard

          7  additions that have met with the candidate's

          8  approval.

          9                 A point of view that would bear on

         10  the future of the many designated row house

         11  districts that are under intense redevelopment

         12  pressures.

         13                 I have a further detailed report of

         14  our findings, if the Committee is interested in

         15  further information.

         16                 We hope the Council will carefully

         17  consider this appointment, and we urge the Council

         18  to allow for the public to be more involved in

         19  selecting future commissioners.

         20                 We would sincerely hope that the

         21  process for future appointments will be more

         22  inclusive and transparent. Thank you.

         23                 MS. HILLER: My name is Amanda Hiller,

         24  and I'm a lawyer with Municipal Arts Society.

         25                 A lot of questions have been raised
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          2  about this nominee, and we've tried to answer them

          3  as best we can in response to questions from Council

          4  Members and others.

          5                 We've provided a written letter to

          6  all Committee members, and I'm just going to

          7  highlight it here.

          8                 There have really been three issues

          9  about this nominee that have come to our attention.

         10  The first is the qualifications. She's a licensed

         11  architect to practice in the State of New York. She

         12  is clearly qualified to sit as an architect member.

         13                 The second issue is her philosophy.

         14  In the past, most, if not all, Commissioners on the

         15  Landmarks Commission have shared the goals of the

         16  Landmarks law, and we would certainly hope that this

         17  nominee does so as well. Her service on the Land Use

         18  Committee of Community Board 8 provides a record of

         19  that service and that philosophy, and we joined with

         20  the Friends of the Upper East Side in reviewing that

         21  record, not only in comparison to the final actions

         22  of the Community Board Committee, but in comparison

         23  to the position of the Friends of the Upper East

         24  Side.

         25                 And perhaps most importantly, to the
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          2  actual ultimate decision by the Landmarks Commission

          3  on those matters. While not necessarily agreeing

          4  with all of the actions taken, we concluded that

          5  there's a strong correlation between her record and

          6  the work of the Landmarks Commission, and conclude

          7  that her views are within the mainstream of the

          8  preservation community.

          9                 Finally, perhaps the central question

         10  these days is whether her practice at Bryan Cave

         11  represents a conflict of interest, or appearance of

         12  a conflict of interest.

         13                 She has been advised by the Conflict

         14  of Interest Board, that so long as she recuses

         15  herself from matters related to that practice or her

         16  husband's firm, that there will be no conflict.

         17                 We, however, have concerns about her

         18  practice before other agencies in the City. Members

         19  of the City Planning Commission are required to

         20  limit -- are prohibited, in fact, from practicing

         21  before other City Land Use agencies because there

         22  isn't a potential for conflict or at least the

         23  appearance of a conflict of interest when you're

         24  appearing before say the Board of Standards and

         25  Appeals on a matter that was rejected by the

                                                            28

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Landmarks Commission. You didn't get the 74 711,

          3  you're seeking a variance now.

          4                 These agencies are intertwined and

          5  together make the fabric of Land Use in our City,

          6  and we urge the Council to clarify that.

          7                 Notwithstanding that, members of the

          8  Bar --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Can you please --

         10                 MS. HILLER: Sure.

         11                 Members of the Bar who have sat on

         12  the Landmarks Commission in the past have

         13  voluntarily recused themselves for practice before

         14  those other landmarks agencies, Land Use agencies.

         15  They weren't required to. Their sense of propriety

         16  led them to do that. And we encourage this nominee

         17  to do so. We encourage the Council to assure that

         18  even the appearance of impropriety is avoided in

         19  this case, and otherwise, we acknowledge that she's

         20  philosophically in line with the Commission and

         21  qualified to serve.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         23  Hiller.

         24                 MS. HILLER: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Stay right there.
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          2  We have a question from Council Member Lappin.

          3                 MS. HILLER: Absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you.

          5                 MS. HILLER: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, I want to

          7  be clear. So, MAS is testifying today in support of

          8  the Council's confirmation of Ms. Perlmutter?

          9                 MS. HILLER: I would say that we're

         10  testifying ambiguously with regard to this

         11  nomination. We're the Municipal Arts Society, what

         12  can I say.

         13                 But, you know, I mean she's clearly

         14  qualified. Certainly our review of her record would

         15  lead us to believe that she's not far outside the

         16  mainstream of preservation. I mean, I think there

         17  have been concerns about that based on her service

         18  at Community Board 8, but our review of her actual

         19  voting record on a variety of projects over the

         20  three years didn't lead us to a fundamental

         21  discomfort with her philosophy.

         22                 Certainly, I wouldn't say that we

         23  agree with every vote that she's taken, by no means

         24  would we say that, but that doesn't place her so

         25  outside the mainstream that the traditional
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          2  deference to a mayoral nomination should be

          3  discarded.

          4                 We do, however, have real concerns

          5  with regard to the appearance of a conflict of

          6  interest in this case.

          7                 Landmarks' decisions affect

          8  individuals, they affect institutions, they affect

          9  entire neighborhoods sometimes. The Council has been

         10  criticized a lot in recent years -- I mean, not the

         11  Council, excuse me -- the Commission has been

         12  criticized a lot in recent years for some of its

         13  decision making. The public has to trust the work of

         14  the Commission, has to trust that there is no cloud

         15  on the kinds of decisions that are happening there.

         16  And we really do have concerns that if you're

         17  practicing before, or your colleague in the next

         18  cubicle is practicing before other City agencies on

         19  these projects, the fact that you personally recused

         20  yourself from the final vote, doesn't remove that,

         21  even appearance of impropriety or appearance of a

         22  conflict of interest.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: You mentioned

         24  her voluntarily recusing herself from work before

         25  other City agencies, but that's not a legal
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          2  obligation.

          3                 MS. HILLER: No, it isn't.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And this is

          5  not a compensated position, I understand that. But I

          6  guess I'm confused about your testimony in the sense

          7  that, and I understand what you're saying about the

          8  mainstream --

          9                 MS. HILLER: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And I know you

         11  did a lot of work dissecting her record.

         12                 MS. HILLER: Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: But I guess

         14  I'm confused in the sense that the record is

         15  appropriate, but you'd like us to somehow urge her

         16  to voluntarily stop making a living. So, I guess I'm

         17  confused about where you're coming down.

         18                 MS. HILLER: Well, I think that's

         19  really a question about the nomination itself.

         20                 I mean, the Municipal Arts Society

         21  has been involved with Landmarks Commission since

         22  its inception 40 years ago. We are certainly

         23  sensitive to the needs of design professionals and

         24  practicing members of the bar, to be able to serve

         25  on commissions, whether this one or the Art
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          2  Commission or other public bodies, and still be able

          3  to make a living.

          4                 In this case we have a nominee whose

          5  entire living is as a Land Use attorney, practicing

          6  before City agencies.

          7                 You know, being appointed to one of

          8  those agencies, while remaining practicing before

          9  other agencies, we're troubled by that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair.

         12                 MS. HILLER: Any other questions?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Madam

         14  Chair?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         16  Katz and then Council Member Garodnick.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I'm sorry.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm also trying

         19  to just -- I understand it's the Municipal Arts

         20  Society, I'm Chair of the Land Use Committee, I

         21  understand when you say --

         22                 MS. HILLER: This is trouble, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:-- It's the

         24  Municipal Arts Society.

         25                 But my question, I guess just tagging
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          2  onto what Council Member Lappin was saying, so would

          3  it be the MAS's position that any commissioner on

          4  any agency, on anything like the Taxi and Limousine

          5  Commission, or the City Planning Commission or the

          6  Health and Hospitals Commission, or the Landmarks

          7  Commission, should never appear in a professional

          8  capacity, even if they're not paid? Because I

          9  understand that you know the distinction, because

         10  City Planning members get paid.

         11                 MS. HILLER: Absolutely.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And they will

         13  not.

         14                 MS. HILLER: Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, is it your

         16  position that none of these folks should appear in

         17  front of any agency anywhere else in the City?

         18                 MS. HILLER: I think that -- you know,

         19  I absolutely recognize that the members of this City

         20  Planning Commission are paid, whereas members of the

         21  Landmarks Commission are not. But I think that if

         22  you look at the Charter provisions as relate to the

         23  members of the City Planning Commission, and you

         24  look at how the Conflicts of Interest Board have

         25  interpreted that, they -- you know, the Charter
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          2  broadly mandates that City Planning Commissioners

          3  not appear before other agencies where there would

          4  appear to be a conflict of interest.

          5                 And then the Conflicts of Interest

          6  Board actually went through and thought about, well,

          7  when are Land Use matters coming up, and then

          8  actually goes through it and says you can't practice

          9  before the Board of Standards and Appeals, and you

         10  can't practice before the Consumer Affairs

         11  Department on Land Use matters, and you can't

         12  practice before business services on Land Use

         13  matters.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: We know what the

         15  law is. We understand that. I'm asking you a

         16  specific question.

         17                 MS. HILLER: I think that what that

         18  work reflected is a recognition that these are

         19  places where there are conflicts of interest, and to

         20  that respect, I guess the society urges the Council

         21  to actually go back and revisit the Ethics laws with

         22  regard to that for intertwined Land Use agencies.

         23                 Certainly the Conflicts of Interest

         24  Board didn't say you can't practice before health

         25  and hospitals on anything. They said where you're
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          2  talking about Land Use-related matter, that presents

          3  a conflict of interest or perhaps an appearance of

          4  one.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The issue in

          6  related issues that may at some point in the future

          7  be intertwined. So even if it's a BSA application,

          8  for instance, that has nothing to do with Landmarks,

          9  your view is that in the future there may be some

         10  sort of, you might have to go to the Landmarks

         11  Commission, then you might have to go to the BSA.

         12                 I'm just trying to get the position.

         13                 MS. HILLER: Yes. I think that it's

         14  hard to find where, as with any conflicts matters

         15  are, you know, where you're talking about conflicts

         16  or appearances of conflicts, it's always hard to

         17  find the finite line where you can define that.

         18                 But, for example, thinking about the

         19  Landmarks Commission, the City Planning Commission,

         20  the Board of Standards and Appeals, an application

         21  related to landmarks often hits each of those

         22  agencies and the notion that someone can practice

         23  before two of them and recuse one of them is

         24  something that troubles us.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 MS. HILLER: Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

          5  Garodnick.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you.

          7                 One very quick question, because I

          8  was confused.

          9                 I think I was confused about the

         10  mainstream comment that you made, because in your

         11  written testimony, you said that her record falls

         12  within the mainstream, but at one point in your

         13  comments she said she is not far out of the

         14  mainstream, and I just want to confirm that your

         15  analysis concluded that she was within the

         16  mainstream of preservation values as practiced as

         17  you wrote in your written testimony.

         18                 MS. HILLER: Yes, I would say that the

         19  mainstream is in, you know, a narrow sidewalk. We

         20  were trying to ascertain whether she was an

         21  extremist, in favor of, you know, development, as

         22  some have thought, or whether she was an art

         23  preservationist resistant to development, and

         24  certainly her, while we don't -- the Society does

         25  not agree with every action that she took in her
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          2  service before the Community Board 8, we find that

          3  it's not that far off from what the Commission has

          4  done on its projects, and is within the realm of

          5  preservation within the City.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          8  Member Garodnick.

          9                 So, I just wanted to understand from

         10  the Municipal Art Society, because on your slip it

         11  says you're in favor --

         12                 MS. HILLER: "With concerns." Yes,

         13  that's just the problem with having to check the

         14  boxes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I wish we could be

         16  like that too, but, unfortunately, we can't vote

         17  with reservations here.

         18                 MS. HILLER: Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And, so, I need a

         20  firm yes or no, in favor of or in opposition, on the

         21  basis of her credentials.

         22                 MS. HILLER: As we wrote in our

         23  written testimony, I quote, Ms. Perlmutter has the

         24  training, the experience, and by many reports, the

         25  personal qualities to make her an exemplary nominee
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          2  for a seat on the Commission. We hope the Council

          3  can resolve -- well, we hope the issues surrounding

          4  her appointment can be resolved satisfactorily.

          5                 And I would urge the members of the

          6  Committee to, you know, to discuss this with Ms.

          7  Perlmutter, as you consider this nomination, so at

          8  least you can be clear on what the implications of

          9  her practice are and will be in the future before

         10  you decide to vote on this nomination.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         12  Hiller.

         13                 MS. HILLER: Anything else?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         15  McMahon.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I want to

         17  thank you for coming down and the thorough analysis

         18  that you gave us.

         19                 MS. HILLER: This has really troubled

         20  us.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: The Municipal

         22  Arts Society, the purpose of that organization is?

         23                 MS. HILLER: We are a 113-year-old

         24  civic organization seeking to improve the quality of

         25  the built environment in New York City.
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          2                 We advocate for sound planning,

          3  preservation, architecture, public art.

          4                 We were instrumental in the formation

          5  of the Landmarks Commission.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Understanding

          7  that, I'm just a little concerned with the final

          8  conclusion you make in the letter, because I

          9  understand that you would want to comment on Ms.

         10  Perlmutter's training, experience and personally

         11  qualities that make her an exemplary nominee for a

         12  seat on the Commission. That's what we would expect

         13  you to comment on.

         14                 MS. HILLER: Certainly.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: The issue of

         16  employment and conflicts, that's certainly the view

         17  of the Conflicts of Interest Board and the Ethics

         18  Committee Council; is that fair to say?

         19                 MS. HILLER: I think --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I mean, I'm a

         21  little surprised that you're commenting, from what

         22  perspective you're commenting on that.

         23                 MS. HILLER: Well, among other things,

         24  members of the past and current members of the Board

         25  of the Municipal Arts Society are past commissioners
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          2  of the Landmarks Commission.

          3                 We were instrumental in the adoption

          4  of the Landmarks Law, in the creation of the

          5  Landmarks Commission. We hope that the Landmarks

          6  Commission will continue to function at the highest

          7  level of integrity, that the public confidence in

          8  the work of the Commission remains steadfast,

          9  because that's how preservation will succeed in the

         10  City. And to that end, we think that where concerns

         11  have been raised, we didn't initiate these concerns,

         12  questions about her qualifications, about her

         13  preservation philosophy and about past, current,

         14  potential conflicts of interest or appearance of

         15  conflicts have been floating through the

         16  preservation community over the last several weeks

         17  and we've been asked to address them.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: We're all

         19  aware of that, and I don't want to keep everybody

         20  here.

         21                 MS. HILLER: Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But I'm just

         23  not quite clear why the Municipal Arts Society -- I

         24  certainly would comment on ability to achieve the

         25  goals of the Commission, as well as the Municipal
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          2  Art Society, but in the area of conflicts of

          3  interest, in those questions, do you comment on

          4  those for every commissioner who is nominated for

          5  the Commission, or is it only because these have

          6  been raised by the preservation community you've now

          7  taken on this added task?

          8                 MS. HILLER: This particular

          9  nomination raised these questions and because these

         10  questions were raised by this nomination, we sought

         11  to address them as best we could --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: You have

         13  expertise --

         14                 MS. HILLER: We don't always deal with

         15  conflicts of interest with regard to every

         16  nomination. We don't seek in a potential nominee to

         17  any of these boards to ascertain whether there might

         18  be a conflict of interest.

         19                 Certainly in this case, though, these

         20  are the questions that are out there, and ones

         21  therefore with which we're concerned.

         22                 And then separately from that, the

         23  Municipal Art Society is equally concerned with the

         24  functioning and integrity and public trust in the

         25  work of the Planning Commission and the work of the
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          2  Board of Standards and Appeals, and the work of

          3  every Land Use agency in the City, and we want to

          4  see them all working at their best, with the best,

          5  with the most public confidence that the Mayor and

          6  the Council can possibly apply --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I think

          8  that's why we're all here.

          9                 MS. HILLER: Exactly. Of course.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I get that

         11  point. But, again, I don't consider myself an expert

         12  on the conflicts of interest. When I have a question

         13  on what to do, I ask the Conflicts of Interest

         14  Board.

         15                 MS. HILLER: Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: They're the

         17  experts.

         18                 I consider you an expert on the arts

         19  in New York City and making sure that the arts are

         20  preserved and that they flourish. So, I take the

         21  first part of your recommendation to heart. Again, I

         22  just question why in this particular case you're now

         23  commenting on ethics, when clearly I think what it

         24  should be is that, you know, we find her qualified

         25  for the reasons under the purview that we exist in
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          2  the Municipal Art Society, we defer to the experts

          3  of the Conflicts of Interest Board to deal with

          4  these other issues.

          5                 Is that a fair assessment of your

          6  recommendation, that you find her qualified on all

          7  of those areas, in terms of the conflicts of

          8  interest, we leave that better to the Conflicts of

          9  Interest experts?

         10                 MS. HILLER: No, that is not our

         11  position at all. It is clear --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: A is wrong

         13  and B is wrong, or just B?

         14                 MS. HILLER: Well, let me put it this

         15  way. First, the short answer to why we're concerned

         16  about the conflicts issue here is that we were

         17  asked. We were asked by members of the Council. We

         18  were asked by others to consider this issue.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I want to ask

         20  --

         21                 MS. HILLER: Let me finish.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I want to ask

         23  you, how does her nomination relate to the running

         24  of the Staten Island Ferry?

         25                 I'm asking you that, you would say,
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          2  well, that has nothing to do with what we are

          3  experts, are doing analyzing a nomination. So, I got

          4  your point, I think I've made mine. I don't want to

          5  hold up the Chairwoman anymore. But just simply, I

          6  am just a little surprised your agency would comment

          7  on something that may not be in your purview.

          8                 Just like I would never say I can

          9  tell you whether someone has a conflict of interest

         10  or not. I would say call up the Conflicts of

         11  Interest Board, that's why they exist.

         12                 Now, if you disagree with their

         13  opinion, you could say I disagree with their

         14  opinion, but who are we to say whether the ferries

         15  are running well or if there's a conflicts of

         16  interest? We would ask DOT or COIB.

         17                 MS. HILLER: To just answer that

         18  briefly. You know, one, the Municipal Arts Society

         19  consulted with Conflicts of Interest Board staff on

         20  this issue. Lawyers at the Municipal Art Society,

         21  including myself and others, have researched the law

         22  with regard to that, certainly we believe we have

         23  reached as credible an opinion as we can. We are not

         24  saying that her service on the Landmarks Commission

         25  would violate the City's ethics laws or the City
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          2  Charter.

          3                 We are in the course of reviewing

          4  that question of whether her service would or has

          5  violated those laws. We found that it hadn't but

          6  that there is a different treatment in the law of

          7  the members of one City agency and other City

          8  agencies that we think should be extended to all of

          9  them and we urge the Council to do that.

         10                 We also note, based on our own

         11  experience with the Landmarks Commission, that

         12  members of the Bar who practice before other Land

         13  Use agencies have voluntarily recused themselves

         14  from that out of a sense of propriety, and we

         15  believe that this nomination would be another case

         16  where that would be prudent.

         17                 In this case it's particularly

         18  difficult, because the nominee's practice is

         19  entirely a Land Use practice. So, I don't know how

         20  to achieve that, and I think that's a problem with

         21  the nomination as a whole, because how can you

         22  achieve that public appearance issue? We're not

         23  talking about a strict violation of the conflicts

         24  law. There is no strict violation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, again,
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          2  you're substituting your opinion of what appearance

          3  of impropriety or conflicts of interest in place of

          4  what Conflicts of Interest Board is doing? If they

          5  came in and said, well, the Conflicts of Interest

          6  Board came in and said, you know, we think that that

          7  building should be landmarked, or we think that the

          8  one percent for arts on the new ferry terminal

          9  should be this, this and this, wouldn't you say,

         10  gee, that's really the purview of the Municipal Art

         11  Society, not the Conflicts of Interest Board?

         12                 I mean, you're raising very

         13  far-reaching issues --

         14                 MS. HILLER: Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: -- That deal

         16  with which board is compensated, which is not, the

         17  ethics of all of that. I don't know how that

         18  pertains to what the mission of the Municipal Art

         19  Society is -- I understand your position, you

         20  understand mine. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.

         21                 MS. HILLER: We strive and have

         22  strived for 113 years for a better New York,

         23  particularly as it relates to Land Use and other

         24  planning matters, and we think that this implicates

         25  that. This issue has troubled the Municipal Art
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          2  Society, as it has troubled the Preservation

          3  community all along --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Hiller --

          5                 MS. HILLER: -- And we think that this

          6  now implicates these issues.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I appreciate your

          8  statement.

          9                 MS. HILLER: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I just wanted to

         11  ask, in relation to the other members of the

         12  Commission, whether it's a hold-over or not, has the

         13  Municipal Art Society come before the Council to

         14  raise the same concerns?

         15                 MS. HILLER: I don't know that this --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes or no?

         17                 MS. HILLER: In my personal

         18  experience, I don't know that a member of the Bar, a

         19  practicing Land Use attorney, has come before the

         20  Commission in very recent time where this issue has

         21  been implicated.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And Ms. Hiller, I

         23  can tell you that every member of the Commission

         24  will more than likely have conflicting issues

         25  similar to Ms. Perlmutter. So I was asking a yes or
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          2  no answer because it was necessary for me to

          3  understand what is particularly bothersome in this

          4  situation compared to all the others?

          5                 For instance, Ms. Soona, who has by

          6  relationship had to recuse herself in other matters,

          7  because she's married to a developer.

          8                 MS. HILLER: Absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And, so, in that

         10  same instance did the Municipal Art Society have

         11  great concerns?

         12                 MS. HILLER: With regard to our

         13  positions on past nominees, I can certainly compile

         14  for you testimony on those various matters. You

         15  know, whereas design professionals, for example, who

         16  are serving on the Landmarks Commission might

         17  occasionally have a matter that comes before the

         18  Landmarks Commission, in this case the nominee makes

         19  a living practicing before the City agencies on Land

         20  Use matters and routinely through the course of her

         21  practice appears before a variety of City Land Use

         22  agencies, we at Municipal Art Society, because we

         23  want to see all of these commissions working at

         24  their best, we believe that there is a chance of a

         25  conflict.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you. I

          3  appreciate your statement.

          4                 MS. HILLER: And would you like those

          5  positions on past nominees?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'll be more than

          7  happy to accept them.

          8                 MS. HILLER: We can certainly compile

          9  those.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         11                 We will move to the next person.

         12                 MS. GOUGH: I'm Christabel Gough, from

         13  the Society for the Architecture of the City. We're

         14  a small preservation advocacy group, and we've been

         15  monitoring the Landmarks Preservation Commission for

         16  more than 20 years now.

         17                 Without any personal criticism of the

         18  candidate, who might well serve with distinction in

         19  a different setting, we find that her nomination to

         20  the LPC has proposed my Mayor Bloomberg is

         21  completely inappropriate, raises serious conflict of

         22  interest questions.

         23                 Margery Perlmutter is a Manhattan

         24  lobbyist who represents real estate industry

         25  clients. Over the last six years she has been
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          2  registered as targeting the LPC for them. Her firm

          3  Bryan Cave has a real estate and outdoor advertising

          4  practice, as did her previous firm, Robinson

          5  Silverman Pearce and so on, which merged with Bryan

          6  Cave in 2002. Proposals for which she registered as

          7  the applicant's lobbyist have had controversial and

          8  negative impacts on landmarks and landmark

          9  designations.

         10                 The Landmarks Law is a populous law

         11  which represents the interest of the people of the

         12  City. Forty years ago the Council found that parts

         13  of the City were being destroyed and uprooted,

         14  "without adequate consideration of the

         15  irreplaceable loss to the people of the City of the

         16  aesthetic, cultural and historic values represented

         17  by potential landmarks, not about vitality, not

         18  about urbanism, about preserving history and

         19  preserving architecture, working with citizen groups

         20  from all parts of the City, we know the passion that

         21  people have for preserving their history.

         22                 The Landmarks Law must be

         23  administered with balance and fairness of judgment.

         24  The law cannot be administered, so by professional

         25  advocates for the industry it regulates such as real
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          2  estate development and outdoor advertising. And I

          3  want to refer you to our written testimony which

          4  contains a large volume of information which I

          5  cannot possibly speak in two minutes.

          6                 However, let's go to a couple of

          7  examples.

          8                 In 2003, the Council turned back the

          9  designation of the Cathedral of St. John The Divine,

         10  because the LPC had struck a deal to landmark only

         11  the footprint and allow the erection of a 200-foot

         12  investment building on the cathedral grounds.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Please wrap your

         14  testimony.

         15                 MS. GOUGH: Yes. You have it. And Ms.

         16  Perlmutter was registered as a lobbyist for that

         17  deal.

         18                 May I just complete this paragraph,

         19  or would you rather I left it?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: We have the

         21  written testimony in front of us.

         22                 MS. GOUGH: Okay. I think the point I

         23  just wanted to get across was that the conflict of

         24  interest, its judgment was based on information

         25  submitted by Ms. Perlmutter and on an investigation
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          2  of the whole range of possible violations of

          3  conflict of interest.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

          5                 MS. SLATER: Good afternoon, members

          6  of Rules Committee. My name is Terri Slater, and I

          7  am the Co-Chair of Defenders of the Historic Upper

          8  East Side.

          9                 Defenders of the Historic Upper East

         10  Side is dedicated to the protection of our area's

         11  historic architectural character.

         12                 Achieving that goal requires a

         13  Landmarks Preservation Commission whose members

         14  represent the highest preservation standards and a

         15  firm commitment to preserving New York City's

         16  architectural scenic, and cultural heritage.

         17                 We must vigorously oppose the

         18  nomination of any candidate who fails to meet these

         19  criteria.

         20                 Someone who lobbies for the lowering

         21  of accepted standards whose career involves

         22  representing those who wish to avoid those standards

         23  should not serve on the Landmarks Preservation

         24  Commission.

         25                 My co-chairman and I, serving on the
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          2  Community Board 8 Landmarks Committee, have received

          3  numerous complaints from members of the public,

          4  regarding the bias they observe by Ms. Perlmutter

          5  and her conduct at our meetings.

          6                 We believe the complaints are

          7  justified.

          8                 Defendants of the historic Upper East

          9  Side strongly urges the Committee to disapprove Ms.

         10  Perlmutter's nomination to the Landmarks

         11  Preservation Commission.

         12                 In addition, I've submitted, you have

         13  the material with some examples, we believe, of Ms.

         14  Perlmutter, I guess in action. This letter was

         15  described by Ms. Perlmutter as being an error, but

         16  it's dated December 8th, 2005. It details very

         17  ordinary kind of extension of a term of variance and

         18  it's on Bryan Cave's stationery with Margery

         19  Perlmutter's name at the top. It was put in our

         20  packets at the community board. Each member received

         21  a copy of this letter.

         22                 In addition, we submitted a copy of

         23  an article from the Metro Section of the New York

         24  Times from Monday, which tells the story of a

         25  hapless owner of a building on East 83rd Street --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Slater, if you

          3  can just wrap up your testimony?

          4                 MS. SLATER: I will.

          5                 There is an accompanying appeal to

          6  the Board of Standards and Appeals which is going to

          7  be filed -- well, I guess it has been filed with the

          8  Board of Standards and Appeals.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Slater, did

         10  you include that in your written testimony? And do

         11  we have a copy of your testimony?

         12                 MS. SLATER: I believe you do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         14                 MS. SLATER: But I would just like to

         15  finish what I was saying.

         16                 This appeal is coming before

         17  Community Board 8 on June 14th of this year.

         18                 The article I think speaks volumes

         19  about Ms. Perlmutter's sense of appropriateness.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         22  Slater.

         23                 MR. BANKOFF: Good afternoon. I'm

         24  Simeon Bankoff, Executive Director of the Historic

         25  Districts Council. HDC is a Citywide advocate for

                                                            55

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  New York's historic neighborhoods.

          3                 We are dedicated to preserving the

          4  integrity of the New York City landmarks law and

          5  furthering the preservation ethic.

          6                 We urge you to oppose the nomination

          7  of Margery Perlmutter for the following grounds, and

          8  I will summarize for the interest of time:

          9                 As has been stated before, Ms.

         10  Perlmutter is a Land Use attorney for Bryan Cave,

         11  who is a registered as a lobbyist targeting the LPC,

         12  the City Planning Commission, and other agencies

         13  including community boards.

         14                 She also serves on Community Board 8,

         15  as has been mentioned. Since her appointment to

         16  Community Board 8 in April 2001, she has represented

         17  clients who have come before the community board for

         18  Land Use proposals, despite Conflict of Interest

         19  Board opinions.

         20                 A fast example would be in 2001,

         21  2002, according to public records, Ms. Perlmutter

         22  represented the Tamarkin Company (phonetic) and

         23  their project before Community Board 8 and the

         24  Landmarks Commission. This project was in

         25  negotiations between the community, the LPC and
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          2  developers, for several months before being approved

          3  in a very modified forum in April 2002.

          4                 These interactions, and the other

          5  ones, as noted in my written testimony, make us very

          6  uncomfortable. Admonition to recuse oneself in the

          7  future as advised in the recent advisory opinion on

          8  Ms. Perlmutter are all to the good, but there is a

          9  history of actions that must be taken into account.

         10                 Second point. Should she be appointed

         11  the LPC and recuse herself as she is required to do,

         12  it may well impede the LPC's timely function because

         13  of quorum issues. That has been addressed, however

         14  -- by her statements, however we feel that the very

         15  wide reach of the Bryan Cave client list, which

         16  include clients such as Viacom Outdoor, there is the

         17  very real possibility that she will be forced to

         18  absent herself from whole ranges of decisions.

         19                 Equally important to her continued

         20  recusals would create the appearance of impropriety.

         21                 Finally, as stated, Ms. Perlmutter is

         22  replacing another architect on the Landmarks

         23  Commission. There are already five architects

         24  sitting on the Commission, while only three are

         25  required by law.
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          2                 Of greater import, she is a resident

          3  of Manhattan, which would leave the majority of the

          4  commissioners residing in Manhattan, while the

          5  balance of the City's landmarks are in Manhattan is

          6  becoming knowledge fact, the Bloomberg

          7  Administration has been trying --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Bankoff, can

          9  you wrap up?

         10                 MR. BANKOFF: You got it.

         11                 -- Has been trying to address this

         12  problem, we find this is counter to the mayoral

         13  issues. That I will leave you this, I just say this

         14  is an opportunity for the City Council to exercise

         15  their authority to promote responsibility,

         16  diligence, community service and transparency in

         17  public service.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Bankoff, I

         19  just wanted to ask you to remain. There is a

         20  question from Council Member Garodnick.

         21                 MR. BANKOFF: Sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And I just wanted

         23  to state for the record the list of names that has

         24  been provided to myself as Chair of this Committee,

         25  and I will be forwarding that list of names and
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          2  qualified resumes to Mr. Tierney, who is here, the

          3  Chairman of the Commission, as well as the

          4  Administration, who I have spoken to in regards to

          5  what had been raised.

          6                 MR. BANKOFF: Thank you.

          7                 And I was looking in my files and I

          8  realized back in December 2002 we had offered to

          9  Mayor Bloomberg and cc'd various Council Members,

         10  Council Member Comrie, who was then Chair of this

         11  Committee, as well, our desire to help in this

         12  process.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         14                 Hang on one second. Council Member

         15  Garodnick.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Just to

         17  clarify something that you said in your testimony.

         18  You said that in 2001 and 2002, Ms. Perlmutter

         19  represented the Tamarkin Company in a project before

         20  Community Board 8, at a time that she was on

         21  Community Board 8; is that correct? Is that your

         22  testimony?

         23                 MR. BANKOFF: That is my testimony.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: What did

         25  she do exactly? Did she present it before the
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          2  Community Board?

          3                 MR. BANKOFF: According to public

          4  records, she is listed as being part of the lobby

          5  team, which was targeting community board and the

          6  Landmarks --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So, she's

          8  listed on a website somewhere as a lobbyist as part

          9  of the team, but she didn't actually herself come to

         10  Community Board 8 to present this matter before her

         11  own community board, did she?

         12                 MR. BANKOFF: I do not know if that is

         13  the case.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

         15                 MR. BANKOFF: However --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Did she

         17  vote on that matter?

         18                 MR. BANKOFF: By the list of community

         19  board votes, it was a very complicated and I can

         20  provide the Tamarkin Decision was a very long and

         21  involved situation where it came before the

         22  community board and the Landmarks Commission a

         23  number of times. I would need to go back to my files

         24  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Did she
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          2  vote on any of them?

          3                 MR. BANKOFF: I do not know.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

          5                 We will appreciate that there is a

          6  difference here between being listed on a website as

          7  part of a lawfirm's lobbying team and actually

          8  making a presentation to a community board on which

          9  she served. And for me, that is the difference. And

         10  this is just a caution for anybody who is coming

         11  forward to testify to make similar claims, which is

         12  that there is one thing that you are allowed to do,

         13  which is be a professional. There is something that

         14  you're not allowed to do, which is be a professional

         15  representing a professional client before a board on

         16  which you sit.

         17                 So, I just want to be clear, and I

         18  appreciate that you don't know the answer, and we

         19  will fully get the answer. We can ask Ms. Perlmutter

         20  ourselves, but that is a real distinction that I

         21  hope that other people who are going to come up and

         22  make some more comments will clarify and appreciate.

         23                 So, thank you for that.

         24                 MR. BANKOFF: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council
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          2  Member Garodnick.

          3                 And it is my understanding from the

          4  statement Ms. Perlmutter had read into the record

          5  that she had disclosed in her statement, having made

          6  a mistake, signed on a letter concerning a Community

          7  Board 8 item and recused herself, as well as did not

          8  attend the meeting, for the purpose of clarification

          9  to not mix the two.

         10                 So, I just wanted to reiterate that

         11  point, in fairness of making sure that we're

         12  sticking to the facts here.

         13                 MR. BANKOFF: Indeed. In all fairness,

         14  I think it is also important to discuss these

         15  things, especially when we are being dependent on

         16  self-regulating situations in the future moving

         17  forward.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Correct. Duly

         19  noted.

         20                 And Mr. Bankoff, I'm sorry, one more

         21  second. Council Member Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Simeon, I

         23  apologize, I was running around and trying to grab

         24  breakfast and lunch at the same time as you were

         25  talking. But I just read your testimony.
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          2                 I notice, I assume that's what you

          3  did, you read your testimony?

          4                 MR. BANKOFF: A portion of it, because

          5  I only had two minutes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Did you talk

          7  about the substance of the candidate? Or is your

          8  argument basically that because of the conflicts of

          9  interests issue, and because of the Manhattan Queens

         10  issue that it's an inappropriate candidate?

         11                 MR. BANKOFF: We find, yes --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I don't know

         13  what you're answering.

         14                 MR. BANKOFF: That we found her to be

         15  an inappropriate candidate for those --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: For those two

         17  reasons?

         18                 MR. BANKOFF: Three really.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What's the third

         20  that I didn't mention?

         21                 MR. BANKOFF: Quorum.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Quorum.

         23                 MR. BANKOFF: Quorum and sort of which

         24  latches into the conflict of interest concern.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, the Historic
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          2  Districts Council then, I just want to make this

          3  clear --

          4                 MR. BANKOFF: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The issue is the

          6  conflicts of interests, quorum, and the Manhattan

          7  Queens issue.

          8                 MR. BANKOFF: That is our statement.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, I'm not

         10  hearing any substantive arguments on your part.

         11                 MR. BANKOFF: Actually, I would

         12  disagree because as part of our stated mission it's

         13  preserving the integrity of the Landmarks Law, and

         14  we feel that this casts a shadow, however small, on

         15  the integrity of that process.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Madam

         17  Chair. I had my question answered. Thanks.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         19  Member Katz.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Bankoff.

         21                 Next person.

         22                 MS. WOOD: My name is Kate Wood. I'm

         23  speaking on behalf of Landmark West.

         24                 We urge the Council to disapprove

         25  this appointment. Ms. Perlmutter's record raises
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          2  serious questions about her ability to serve

          3  objectively and independently in the role of

          4  Landmarks commissioner.

          5                 Now, we know that the stakes are high

          6  and this is serious business. There are obviously a

          7  lot of big guns in this room, and some of them more

          8  cynical among us might say that the fix is in.

          9                 I am not personally ready to concede

         10  that. I have seen this Council in action and I know

         11  that you're good at thinking on your feet, and that

         12  you know when to follow the evidence, and your

         13  consciences.

         14                 The Bryan Cave website states that

         15  Ms. Perlmutter's team appears, quote, frequently

         16  before the New York City Landmarks Preservation

         17  Commission on behalf of clients seeking permission

         18  to alter protected properties or to develop in

         19  historic districts, and that, quote, clients expect

         20  and receive positive results.

         21                 The Conflicts of Interest Board

         22  issued a waiver letter dated May 15th, 2006

         23  permitted Ms. Perlmutter to serve on the LPC,

         24  apparently without considering Ms. Perlmutter's role

         25  as a member on Community Board 8, or her
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          2  interactions with other Board members on behalf of

          3  her clients.

          4                 In this capacity, Ms. Perlmutter

          5  unambiguously crossed the line on at least one

          6  occasion, the December 8th letter that's been

          7  referred to. Indeed, that letter, which was

          8  addressed to the Chair, the then Chair of the

          9  Community Board, Charles Warren, who is also a

         10  partner at Bryan Cave, was a very grave mistake.

         11                 Ms. Perlmutter's action is expressly

         12  prohibited by the New York City Charter and by

         13  Conflicts of Interest Board Advisory Opinion No.

         14  96-4, which states, quote, a community board member

         15  who is a professional, a lawyer, architect,

         16  engineer, may not personally represent any party

         17  presenting a project or proposal for consideration

         18  to the community board on which he or she serves.

         19                 The Council is working on important

         20  lobbying legislation to curve the influence of

         21  lobbyists, and I'll just wrap up and say that you're

         22  concerned about the integrity of government, we're

         23  all concerned about the integrity of the Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission. Ms. Perlmutter's track

         25  record appears to be strongest in her efforts to put
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          2  developer interests ahead of community concerns.

          3  That is a substance issue in our minds, and we

          4  therefore urge you to disapprove this appointment.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

          7  Wood.

          8                 Can you just remain? I'd like to call

          9  on Council Member Garodnick.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Just one

         11  point. Thank you.

         12                 I, too, am concerned about the

         13  December 8th letter, although you're correct to say

         14  that the Conflicts of Interest Board Advisory

         15  Opinion says you may not personally represent a

         16  party presenting a project before your board, and

         17  appreciating that Ms. Perlmutter, I expect, will

         18  explain that this was an error that was corrected,

         19  there also is an exception, as I understand it,

         20  under the Conflicts rules which say that if it's a

         21  ministerial communication, that you may actually

         22  communicate that that may be bad practice, it may be

         23  inappropriate, and I think that there should be no

         24  circumstances in which you actually should make that

         25  sort of communication to a partner and also a chair
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          2  of the Board. But would you accept the fact that

          3  this was a ministerial communication? It doesn't

          4  urge the Board to vote one way or the other. It just

          5  says here are the documents.

          6                 MS. WOOD: I'd completely agree with

          7  you that there should be no communication of this

          8  type, whether it be ministerial or in an advocacy

          9  role.

         10                 I think the fact of, you know, having

         11  one's name appear on a letter speaks volumes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well, I

         13  agree with that.

         14                 We'll ask Ms. Perlmutter about that,

         15  because I think that some of us have questions about

         16  that letter. But to me, you know, in looking at it,

         17  it looks like a ministerial letter, it doesn't urge

         18  the Board to do anything, and whether that should

         19  actually be allowed is another story, but thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 MS. WOOD: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         23  Wood.

         24                 MS. WOOD: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Next.
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          2                 MS. SALTZMAN: Good afternoon, Council

          3  members. My name is Judith Saltzman. I am an

          4  architect and a preservationist, and a principal of

          5  Li Saltzman Architect, a firm that specializes in

          6  preservation, restoration, and adaptive use.

          7                 I am speaking today to highly

          8  recommend Margery Perlmutter for confirmation to the

          9  New York City Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         10                 Because the Landmarks Preservation

         11  Commission is so fundamental to the public good of

         12  our City, your task of ensuring the appointment of

         13  appropriate and dedicated commissioners is crucial.

         14                 Committed to the highest standards,

         15  Margery Perlmutter possesses the skills and values

         16  that will serve the Landmarks Commission well.

         17                 Ms. Perlmutter is the consummate

         18  professional, exhibiting intellectual discipline,

         19  rigorous analytic skills and creative thinking. In

         20  more than a decade I have known her. We have worked

         21  together on numerous projects involving landmarked

         22  buildings.

         23                 In addition, Margery and I jointly

         24  represented the US Committee of the International

         25  Council of Monuments and Sites at the 2005
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          2  Scientific Symposium in Istanbul, presenting a paper

          3  entitled Preservation and Development in Historic

          4  Districts in New York City.

          5                 In the process of developing this

          6  paper, we reviewed numerous case studies in New

          7  York, analyzed the effectiveness of local State and

          8  National Preservation laws, deepened our respect for

          9  the New York City Landmarks Law, and discussed our

         10  findings in the context of the symposium's

         11  international community of preservationists.

         12                 Margery's approach to preservation is

         13  based on intellectual honesty and is intended to

         14  create a richer more complex understanding of the

         15  built environment. She is open to ideas, enjoys

         16  discussion and is extremely articulate.

         17                 Margery's assets will be invaluable

         18  in the Commission's designation and public hearing

         19  processes. Her professional background is

         20  interdisciplinary, as an architect focusing on

         21  affordable housing in the five boroughs, and as a

         22  Land Use attorney with expertise in historic

         23  districts and zoning.

         24                 Margery's dedication to public

         25  service is evident in her effective chairmanship --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Saltzman, if

          3  you can start wrapping up?

          4                 MS. SALTZMAN: I will.

          5                 Her multi-faceted abilities and

          6  interests are exceptional. I hold Margery Perlmutter

          7  in the utmost regard and firmly believe she is a

          8  uniquely qualified candidate for this position. I

          9  urge you to confirm Ms. Perlmutter as a

         10  Commissioner.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MS. SALTZMAN: May I ask, Laurie

         14  Beckelman, a former Chair of the Landmarks

         15  Commission was unable to remain here due to the fact

         16  that we're running so late. She asked if I could

         17  speak on her behalf?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Was she called up

         19  for testimony? Not in this panel. If you can just

         20  wait one second.

         21                 MS. SALTZMAN: Certainly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'll allow the

         23  next person to go and you can read.

         24                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Good afternoon,

         25  Chairman Reyna, and Committee members. My name is
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          2  Judith Schneider, and I am here to support the

          3  appointment of Margery Perlmutter to the Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission.

          5                 I attend the monthly meetings of the

          6  Landmarks Committee of Community Board 8, and have

          7  observed over the years Ms. Perlmutter's leadership

          8  of this Committee. I have found her to be extremely

          9  knowledgeable, being both an architect and an

         10  attorney.

         11                 She makes sure that the applicant

         12  gives a complete presentation that all the various

         13  groups in the community have had a chance to express

         14  their concerns, no matter how much they differ.

         15                 She is also very careful to make sure

         16  that all parties affected by the landmark item, be

         17  the owner of the property or the area resident, are

         18  notified before the Committee hears the item and

         19  before it is voted on.

         20                 When there is a question of the role

         21  of the Committee or the Landmarks Law, she explains

         22  the law distinctly and clearly so that everyone

         23  understands.

         24                 She has conducted the meetings in an

         25  imminently fair manner, making the experience for
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          2  the applicant, the members of the community and the

          3  members of the Committee a civil and hospitable one.

          4                 I think Ms. Perlmutter would be a

          5  wonderful addition to the Landmarks Preservation

          6  Commission, and I strongly support her appointment.

          7                 Thank you for hearing my testimony.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Schneider, I

          9  just wanted you to remain.

         10                 Council Member Lappin would like to

         11  ask you a question. Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 How long have you been a member of

         15  the Landmarks Committee at Community Board 8?

         16                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Well, actually we're

         17  not supposed to testify that we're a member of the

         18  Board, but since you're asking, for I guess about

         19  four or five years now. I can't   give you exactly.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, during the

         21  duration of Ms. Perlmutter's Chairmanship, you

         22  participated in Committee meetings.

         23                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: At any point

         25  in time, either as Chair or as a member of the Board
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          2  preceding her appointment as Chair of the Landmarks

          3  Committee, have you ever seen Ms. Perlmutter

          4  advocate or lobby on behalf of a client?

          5                 MS. SCHNEIDER: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay.

          7                 And I wanted to go back to something

          8  else you mentioned about notifying owners of

          9  property about a landmark hearing. Because there has

         10  been a lot of discussion and debate in the community

         11  relating to the City and suburban, which is an issue

         12  that came up while Ms. Perlmutter was chairing the

         13  Landmarks Committee, and what has happened is that

         14  the owner of the building, after becoming aware that

         15  this was something that was going to be considered,

         16  went out, got demolition permits and now was able to

         17  do work that would be detrimental and harm the

         18  protection potentially of the building.

         19                 So, I wanted to go back to that. Is

         20  your understanding the policy of the Board

         21  consistently that any time a property is going to be

         22  considered for designation the owner is notified?

         23                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Not only does the

         24  owner need to be notified, but the residents of the

         25  area who live in the landmarked building and
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          2  surrounding area need to be notified. And this was a

          3  very confusing issue because it came up in the

          4  summer months, and the letter that was written by

          5  the individual who asked for this to be on the

          6  agenda was so confusing that our Board office posted

          7  79th Street where the other section of City and

          8  suburban is. They didn't post the 64th, 65th Street

          9  area, so the community didn't even have a public

         10  posting. It was summertime, the residents were away,

         11  and they did not notify the owner of the building,

         12  and I think it's wonderful to landmark buildings,

         13  but I don't think it's fair to landmark a building

         14  and not tell the owner that this is what you're

         15  about. I think you have to notify the entire

         16  community.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I guess my

         18  question, though, is about Board policy. Is it the

         19  Board policy to -- I mean, there is posting in a

         20  neighborhood, which is done on any issue,

         21  landmarking or not, and notifying the owner in

         22  addition to posting in the neighborhood.

         23                 Is it, to your knowledge, the Board's

         24  policy to do both or to do only one?

         25                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay.

          3                 MS. SCHNEIDER: I must admit that

          4  under Ms. Perlmutter's leadership it became the

          5  Board's policy not to hear anything if the owner of

          6  the building was not notified about the landmarking

          7  and to make sure that the area had been posted.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, are you

          9  saying that Ms. Perlmutter changed the Board's

         10  policy?

         11                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Well, I think she

         12  helped implement that because there were other items

         13  under her Chairmanship where the owners of the

         14  building had not, if you want me to mention them, I

         15  can, had not been notified and they were put off for

         16  subsequent meetings. We had Manhattan House, we had

         17  the Beekman Theater, we had the cinema on Third

         18  Avenue across from Bloomingdales, and the first time

         19  they were on the agenda, they were not heard under

         20  her leadership, because the owners of the building

         21  had not been notified that these were up for

         22  landmark discussion.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.
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          2  Schneider.

          3                 Ms. Beckelman is not with us here

          4  today, and I have agreed to listen to testimony, but

          5  it has been expressed that the protocol is not to

          6  allow whomever is not here to have their statement

          7  read into the record. So, please continue.

          8                 I allowed it, so I won't go back on

          9  my word.

         10                 MS. SALTZMAN: I'll be very brief.

         11  Laurie Beckelman, a former Chair of the Landmarks

         12  Preservation Commission appointed under Dinkins and

         13  serving under Giuliani has known Margery Perlmutter

         14  for over 20 years. She would welcome her as a

         15  Commissioner and she said she would be an enormous

         16  asset to the Commission and the City and is in full

         17  support of her confirmation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you so much.

         19                 MS. SALTZMAN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Lang.

         21                 MR. LANG: Good afternoon, Chair

         22  Reyna, and Committee members. I'm Roger Lang

         23  speaking on behalf of the New York Landmarks

         24  Conservancy.

         25                 For 32 years we've steadfastly
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          2  supported the work of the Landmarks Preservation

          3  Commission. In that period rarely has a nomination

          4  to the ranks of the Commission sparked such

          5  widespread concern. Why? Well, surely it is not Ms.

          6  Perlmutter's intellect, training or experience.

          7  Rather, it is her occupation which troubles us.

          8                 She is the first registered lobbyist

          9  to be nominated to the Commission. Ms. Perlmutter's

         10  livelihood depends on her ability to work with her

         11  colleagues at Bryan Cave to obtain approvals for

         12  their clients from a broad array of municipal

         13  agencies.

         14                 Last week the Conflict of Interest

         15  Board identified eight Bryan Cave projects pending.

         16  How many more would arise in the years ahead?

         17                 Ms. Perlmutter is expected to

         18  continue to function as a lobbyist during her term

         19  of service, despite the potential conflicts that

         20  entails, and frequent recusals could help hinder the

         21  Commission's quorums or ability to work efficiently.

         22                 Now, we can ask, well, doesn't this

         23  apply to design professionals, too, who serve as

         24  commissioners, and they must have conflicts as well.

         25  Well, they do. Many architects and executives of
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          2  construction companies have, however, served with

          3  distinction as members of the Commission, when

          4  conflicts arise they do occasionally recuse

          5  themselves.

          6                 The key distinction is that

          7  architects and contractors primarily design and

          8  build projects, as a relatively small part of their

          9  services, they may help to obtain the necessary

         10  approvals. But lobbyists exist solely to influence

         11  government decisions.

         12                 We take the appearance of a conflict

         13  of interest seriously and are concerned that a

         14  sitting commissioner would have a real or apparent

         15  undo influence as a lobbyist.

         16                 The appearance of impartiality and

         17  independence is essential for public confidence in

         18  the work of the Commission.

         19                 We can support this nomination only

         20  if Ms. Perlmutter will not or cannot appear before

         21  any City agency or official on behalf of a client

         22  with respect to Land Use matters.

         23                 We believe that Landmarks

         24  Commissioners should be subject to the same conflict

         25  of interest restrictions as City Planning
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          2  Commissioners. And we thank you for the opportunity

          3  to present our views.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Lang, I

          5  appreciate your statement.

          6                 I just wanted to ask you a question,

          7  because the same ambiguity, I believe, I am hearing

          8  in your testimony, I heard from the Municipal Art

          9  Society.

         10                 You would support the appointment if

         11  she recused on all Land Use items interagency across

         12  the City?

         13                 MR. LANG: That's correct. That is the

         14  same standard to which City Planning Commissioners

         15  are held.

         16                 We appreciate the distinction at the

         17  moment that City Planning Commissioners are

         18  compensated and Landmarks Commission members are

         19  not. However, our agency advocates strongly for

         20  compensation for Landmarks Commissioners, and feels

         21  that it would be appropriate to set the higher

         22  standard. And I hope that's not ambiguous.

         23                 I take it in the case of the

         24  Municipal Art Society, their statement might have

         25  been intentionally ambiguous, I, however, am trying
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          2  to be clear.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And I appreciate

          4  your attempt for clarity here.

          5                 MR. LANG: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I just needed to

          7  continue this line of questioning, and I would

          8  appreciate my colleagues to just remain, because

          9  we're going to pause on the segment of hearing from

         10  the public to allow Ms. Perlmutter, and we have been

         11  joined by Chairman Tierney, to be able to respond to

         12  some of what has been already mentioned.

         13                 Mr. Lang, in your experience,

         14  associated to the New York Landmarks Conservancy,

         15  has this issue been raised in the past with any

         16  other appointments?

         17                 Because I find that Ms. Perlmutter,

         18  having abided by the law of registering as a

         19  lobbyist as now being tainted as not qualified

         20  enough or not given the opportunity to serve in an

         21  arena where she can apply her passion for, despite

         22  the fact that there is perhaps some opposition as to

         23  whether or not she is a preservationist, but clearly

         24  she has a love for preserving landmarks, and she's

         25  worked in also the development side, and, so, she
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          2  has that technical experience on both ends.

          3                 If you can just express to me, is it

          4  the fact that she's a registered lobbyist that we

          5  have an issue with, and no one else before her has

          6  ever been a registered lobbyist; can you just clear

          7  that for me?

          8                 MR. LANG: Yes, I will certainly try.

          9                 We have the utmost admiration for Ms.

         10  Perlmutter's qualifications, and that is not a

         11  subject on which we wrote in our statement or

         12  commented. Our concern is solely the de novo

         13  situation, the first registered lobbyist, to be

         14  proposed as the sitting commissioner.

         15                 We don't wish to taint Ms. Perlmutter

         16  in any way. We do, however, feel that Landmarks

         17  Commissioners are held in high esteem, and when such

         18  a person appears before another City body, that fact

         19  is known and there is the potential for the apparent

         20  conflict of interest or the appearance of an

         21  imprimatur or something of the sort that we think

         22  needs to be avoided. And it would apply to anyone in

         23  a similar situation. This is simply the first

         24  instance in which a registered lobbyist has been

         25  proposed for a seat on the Commission.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: But prior to her

          3  there have been no registered lobbyists appointed to

          4  the Commission, and so has the same standard been

          5  applied?

          6                 MR. LANG: Perhaps not. I mean, it

          7  goes a long way back, and the requirement to

          8  register as a lobbyist is a relatively recent one.

          9  So, this is probably the first instance in which the

         10  last couple of years it could have come up.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Lang.

         13                 I'd like to ask Council Member

         14  Lappin, who has a question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you,

         16  Madam Chair.

         17                 I guess the question is, I don't like

         18  the idea if somebody is sitting on a Landmarks

         19  Preservation Commission one day a week and the other

         20  three being lobbying before the BSA or City

         21  Planning.

         22                 But it's not a compensated position

         23  and so the rules are different. So, my question is,

         24  are you asking us to vote against her on principal

         25  because the rule is the way it is? Because that's
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          2  different from saying she's not qualified. And

          3  that's sort of the crux of this issue and the

          4  problem and why it is difficult.

          5                 So, I guess my question is, are you

          6  saying we should vote against her because you don't

          7  like the way the rules are, or because you don't

          8  think she's qualified?

          9                 MR. LANG: Perhaps a portion of my

         10  statement which I abridged in the interest of time

         11  would address that. We just think that, we

         12  appreciate the Mayor's right to nominate somebody

         13  with whom he is comfortable, but the City Council's

         14  powers to confirm a nomination are equally

         15  important. And we think that you should air on the

         16  side of caution and ask the Mayor to send another

         17  name of an individual who is equally qualified as a

         18  preservationist but not as conflicted.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         20  Member Lappin.

         21                 Any further questions?

         22                 MR. LANG: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Lang, if I can

         24  have you come up again?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Very, very
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          2  quick, because you're the first apparently person

          3  who brought up the lobbyist issue. This is a very

          4  quick question.

          5                 Would you hold the same sort of

          6  criteria to those who do business with the City as

          7  you do a lobbyist? I'm a developer, I do business

          8  with the City. I work for HRA. You know, I'm a

          9  not-for-profit organization that has $200,000 worth

         10  of contracts with the City, would you hold lobbyists

         11  and them at the same level?

         12                 MR. LANG: I can only give you a

         13  personal reaction to that. I mean, we have a policy

         14  committee that considers these matters and we

         15  haven't discussed that particular issue before, and

         16  it hasn't arisen in the context of a landmarks seat.

         17  But we'd certainly air on the side of treating it as

         18  a similar situation.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right, thank

         20  you.

         21                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Lang.

         24                 MR. LANG: Thank you, Ma'am.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'd like to ask
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          2  Chairman Tierney if he'd like to say a few words?

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Thank you, Madam

          4  Chairman, and Council members. Thank you

          5  specifically for inviting me to be up here with

          6  Margery Perlmutter candidate that we've been

          7  discussing that you all have been considering today.

          8                 One of the Council members before I

          9  started ask me, before we started, in a sentence are

         10  you supporting her, and if so, why, very briefly.

         11  And I think we've heard a lot of it already, and I

         12  would summarize it by saying incredible credentials,

         13  high integrity, architect, lawyer, passion,

         14  preservation. I can't imagine anyone better

         15  qualified to serve on the Commission.

         16                 The other added element that makes it

         17  incredibly interesting, icing on the cake, if you

         18  will, is her experience and her thoughtfulness on

         19  the community board, specifically in the landmark

         20  area.

         21                 As many of you know, the community

         22  boards play a very important role in the Landmarks

         23  Commission's procedures and proceedings. In fact, in

         24  the last three years we have instituted reforms

         25  ourselves to enhance that role, to provide that
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          2  nobody comes to the Landmark Commission anymore for

          3  a designation, for a certificate of appropriateness,

          4  for any action, unless they have gone to the

          5  community board first. So, if they come up in our

          6  door and say we want to put this on the agenda, we

          7  say have you been to the community board? And if

          8  they say no - sorry, you go to the community board.

          9  We want to hear from the community board. We want

         10  input, analysis, and we find that response and that

         11  input extremely valuable.

         12                 I think it can be even better. I

         13  would love Margery, should this body see its way to

         14  confirming her, with all the other work she's going

         15  to be doing on that Commission, which is

         16  approximately four or five-hundred hours a year,

         17  conservatively, that doesn't include site visits,

         18  that's being at the Commission, 500 hours 4- to 500

         19  hours a hear for zero pay and for a great commitment

         20  to this City and its preservation.

         21                 But I'd like maybe to add another 150

         22  hours maybe, to ask Margery if she's on the

         23  Commission to do outreach, further outreach to

         24  community boards, to share her experience and her

         25  expertise in that area. To advise them or suggest
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          2  ways in which they can become even more meaningful.

          3                 So, I consider that a hugely -- and

          4  one of the reasons when I was first thinking about

          5  Margery and others for the Commission, I just looked

          6  at everything she brings to the table and I thought

          7  this is too good to be true. And I believe it is too

          8  good to be true, and I think it's great, and I think

          9  she would add. For all those reasons, I strongly

         10  urge her confirmation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you,

         12  Chairman Tierney.

         13                 Ms. Perlmutter, when did you serve on

         14  Community Board 8?

         15                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Since 2002.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Since 2002.

         17                 And you had mentioned in your

         18  statement that it is your intention to resign as a

         19  member of Community Board 8 upon appointment to the

         20  Commission, correct?

         21                 MS. PERLMUTTER: That's correct, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'd like to just

         23  further ask, what are your plans with respect to

         24  recusing yourself on matters that you dealt with at

         25  the community board level that now come before the
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          2  Landmarks Preservation Commission?

          3                 MS. PERLMUTTER: To clarify, something

          4  that might have come to the community board in the

          5  Landmarks Committee; is that what you're asking?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Correct.

          7                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I'm assuming that I

          8  would recuse myself. Though the Conflict of Interest

          9  Board letter doesn't require, it is something that

         10  the Committee considered, and it would be odd,

         11  perhaps.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And have you

         13  sought the advice of the Conflicts of Interest Board

         14  specifically to that question?

         15                 MS. PERLMUTTER: To that question, no.

         16  But actually I don't believe that that would happen

         17  very much, because everything that comes to the

         18  Committee will be going to the Commission within a

         19  couple of weeks of coming to the Committee. So,

         20  unless the Commission has returned it and it's

         21  coming back a few more times, I doubt that I'll be

         22  seeing anything like that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Okay. We have many

         24  questions from my colleagues, and so I'd like to

         25  begin by calling Council Member Avella.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 I had originally intended to ask Ms.

          5  Perlmutter a number of questions, but I think in the

          6  interest of time I'll just make a quick statement.

          7  For my part, I have no problems with her

          8  qualifications whatsoever. And I know and think if

          9  she were appointed to the Commission, she would

         10  certainly do the best job possible, and she is well

         11  intentioned.

         12                 But I have a philosophical issue with

         13  the conflict of interest issue. Even the most

         14  well-intentioned person I think is going to have a

         15  problem giving her employment -- giving her Land Use

         16  expertise and the nature of the Landmarks

         17  Preservation Commission and the tremendous pressure

         18  that's under the Commission by the communities, by

         19  the development community and the need to preserve,

         20  I just don't think anybody in her position can

         21  recuse herself 100 percent of the time. And that's

         22  not taking anything away from Ms. Perlmutter or her

         23  qualifications. I just think that her appointment

         24  would, in effect, send the wrong message and would

         25  in effect give the appearance of impropriety, no
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          2  matter how well intentioned she is. I would never

          3  even put myself in that position. I don't think you

          4  can do it.

          5                 I would just urge the Committee to

          6  vote against this, and I will certainly do that on

          7  the floor of the Council.

          8                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         10  member.

         11                 I'd like to call on Council Member

         12  Lappin.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.

         15                 So, I wanted to -- I mean, I agree

         16  with Council Member Avella that certainly you, and

         17  even the people who have come and testified today

         18  haven't been testifying against your qualifications.

         19  The issue seems, at least for me, is more about the

         20  conflict of interest area.

         21                 And I wanted to talk a little bit

         22  about the letter from December. I want to just

         23  confirm, though, first, our briefing document says

         24  you were appointed to Community Board 8 April 2001;

         25  is that accurate?
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          2                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, what

          4  happened with the letter that was sent in December?

          5                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Okay, I would like to

          6  preface that, if I could, though, with just a

          7  statement that I have in the, since 2002 when I was

          8  a Committee Co-chair, I have made enormous effort to

          9  avoid any sense of impropriety and conflict, and

         10  that every condition where someone came to the

         11  Committee or full Board where I felt even the

         12  slightest possibility that there would be an

         13  impression of impropriety, I recused myself. Even if

         14  it was not a client, even if it was a sort of a

         15  friend that I felt maybe was not appropriate, I

         16  recused myself.

         17                 The situation with the letter was

         18  really an administrative error. The BSA, when you

         19  file a variance application, requires that a copy of

         20  the application be sent by the applicant, therefore,

         21  our office, to all of the elected officials,

         22  including the community board. So, we have a

         23  standard form letter that announces this is the

         24  application, here are the ingredients, we sign it

         25  and we send it off.
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          2                 A paralegal actually prepares the

          3  letter and I'm given a stack of letters usually with

          4  the Council Speaker's name on the top, and I'm just

          5  told sign, sign, sign. So, I did in fact that. And I

          6  didn't realize that it was actually going to

          7  Community Board 8, and so, and didn't pick it up

          8  until it had already gone out and it was too late.

          9                 And when, we didn't realize it until

         10  actually we were required to amend the application,

         11  that I saw that it had gone to Community Board 8 and

         12  I had signed it, and I immediately had someone else

         13  deal with it, and we corrected the problem.

         14                 I'm aware that it was a mistake, and

         15  I apologize.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And I

         17  understand that.

         18                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Mm-hmm.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And as Council

         20  Member Garodnick brought up, there is an exception

         21  and we both read the Charter and we both read the

         22  Conflict of Interest Board ruling yesterday, it does

         23  mention ministerial, and I think that if you look at

         24  the letter, it's clearly something that's

         25  ministerial.
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          2                 The problem for me is, it still is a

          3  signal to the Chair of the Board, this is my client.

          4  If you were sitting on the Commission and a letter

          5  comes from you to Commissioner Tierney, even if it

          6  is a mistake, even if it is something that's

          7  administrative. I mean, that would be a huge problem

          8  for me. Because, again, whether you've worked on it

          9  or not, whether it was a mistake or not, it sends a

         10  signal, FYI they're my client, and that's not the

         11  kind of signal we should be sending.

         12                 So, that's something that's a little

         13  troubling, so how do you make sure that doesn't

         14  happen in the future?

         15                 MS. PERLMUTTER: The difference here

         16  is that on the community board I was not required,

         17  as I am according to the restrictions in the

         18  Conflict of Interest Board letter, I was not

         19  required not to work on any Land Use issues of any

         20  kind that appear before the community board. I was

         21  only asked to recuse myself from voting on items

         22  that come before the community board brought by

         23  members of my firm.

         24                 If I were confirmed by you, I could

         25  not work on any landmarks items that are at my
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          2  office, therefore, no such letters or anything like

          3  that would come before me. I would never actually be

          4  given the opportunity to sign a letter of that type.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay. Can we

          6  go to the Tamarkin issue?

          7                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Which Council

          9  Member Garodnick brought up before as well.

         10                 So, if you were appointed in April of

         11  2001, I think that issue was, not in my district,

         12  I'm not as familiar with it, but was between 2001

         13  and 2002, what was your role on that project?

         14                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I didn't work on the

         15  project.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: In any way,

         17  shape or form?

         18                 MS. PERLMUTTER: In any way.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: But you

         20  believe the rules are as such that you could still

         21  discuss it at the community Board?

         22                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I didn't actually

         23  attend the hearings. Not because I was avoiding it.

         24  I would certainly have recused myself, I wouldn't

         25  have discussed it. My basic policy about recusal on
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          2  the community board is even if you're allowed to

          3  discuss it, I won't. If a client actually who is not

          4  my client that day shows up at the community board,

          5  I step off of the Committee so they don't actually

          6  even see me in the room, and don't make eye contact.

          7                 I have a very strong approach to

          8  recusal and the elimination of an appearance of

          9  impropriety. That's why the letter is so frightening

         10  to me.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, you didn't

         12  discuss, advocate, lobby, you had nothing to do with

         13  the Tamarkin project?

         14                 MS. PERLMUTTER: No.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay.

         16                 Can you give us a brief sense of who,

         17  you know, if you were running to be a Housing Court

         18  judge, or seeking to become a Housing Court judge, I

         19  would be curious if you had been somebody who had

         20  mostly represented landlords or mostly represented

         21  tenants; how would you characterize the clients that

         22  you have represented before the Landmarks

         23  Preservation Commission?

         24                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I haven't actually

         25  represented that many clients myself before the
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          2  Commission, and the last one was the owner of a

          3  small town house on West 4th Street who had a very

          4  dilapidated building and they came to change the

          5  facade. There was no existing facade. So that was a

          6  home owner.

          7                 And the ones prior to that were what

          8  are known as 74 711 applications, which as far as

          9  Landmarks Commission is involved, are 100 percent

         10  historic preservation projects, where in fact in one

         11  case we asked to designate a building so that we

         12  could apply for this permit to change its use from

         13  Manufacturing to residential, and by designating it

         14  and applying to the Commission, we had to restore

         15  the building to its original first class preserved

         16  condition. So, actually, I would say everything I

         17  represented to the Commission was historic

         18  preservation to the max, no addition, no anything.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And your team

         20  is not that large; is that correct?

         21                 MS. PERLMUTTER: That's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, on an

         23  issue like St. John The Divine, are you in the room?

         24  Are you working on the project? I mean, if you're

         25  not making the presentation, are you in no way,
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          2  shape or form involved? And how will that change

          3  from what's been happening in the past and what will

          4  happen in the future?

          5                 MS. PERLMUTTER: In the past, up until

          6  now I might have been able to work on those

          7  projects, but I didn't because I was working on

          8  something else. So, I was maybe aware that they were

          9  going on, but more than that, not.

         10                 In the future I wouldn't be able to

         11  be in the room, work on them. I wouldn't be involved

         12  in them at all.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay.

         14                 MS. PERLMUTTER: And I'd like to just

         15  add that, as lawfirms we are actually accustomed to

         16  this kind of problem about sometimes we represent

         17  two clients on the same issue, and it's odd, but

         18  occasionally it happens, and the clients both waive

         19  the conflict. And, so, we actually put up what's

         20  officially known as a wall between us where we

         21  cannot discuss the matter with the other attorney.

         22  We're actually accustomed to doing that kind of

         23  thing.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: It's just it

         25  is a little bit complicated, and I'm not a lawyer,
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          2  and so I haven't worked in a lawfirm and seen that

          3  kind of thing in action, but, you know, I understand

          4  where some of the preservationist groups are coming

          5  from, and not having to do with you as a person, and

          6  not having to do with your qualifications, but

          7  having to do with the rules being as they are.

          8                 Anyway, I'll leave it at that. Thank

          9  you, Madam Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         11  Member.

         12                 We have Council Member McMahon,

         13  followed by Council Member Garodnick, Sears and then

         14  Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         16  Madam Chairwoman.

         17                 Ms. Perlmutter, to digress from the

         18  conflict issue for a moment, I'd like to get a

         19  little territorial. Coming from an outer borough,

         20  coming from the forgotten borough, coming from the

         21  Borough that has been up until recently totally

         22  neglected by the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         23  as recent as three years? Three years, totally

         24  neglected, and even those with the best intention

         25  have a long way to go to catch up to even the
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          2  playing field; how do I know that someone from

          3  Manhattan, who has been in Manhattan all her life

          4  cares at all about landmarks in Staten Island or

          5  Queens or the Bronx or Brooklyn?

          6                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Well, I think my

          7  testimony on the subject, though brief, I think

          8  shows that before I became a Land Use lawyer, I

          9  actually was a very active housing architect and

         10  housing advocate, and all of my projects were in

         11  other boroughs, there were a few in Harlem actually,

         12  but all of them were in the other boroughs, in

         13  Bronx, Brooklyn, actually maybe something in Queens

         14  and in Staten Island. And I am very knowledgeable

         15  about what were then extremely dilapidated

         16  neighborhoods, and the effect that our work had on

         17  rejuvenating those neighborhoods when we restored

         18  19th Century buildings there, and we also did some

         19  new construction, but mostly it was restoration

         20  work, and both as an architect and for the Division

         21  of Housing and Community Renewal.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Will you

         23  agree with the statement that the Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission has in its history been

         25  Manhattancentric and has a lot of work to do to
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          2  catch up in the outer boroughs?

          3                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, it needs to

          4  designate a lot more boroughs, and I know that it's

          5  making an effort. It needs to do much more.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Much more.

          7                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Much more, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: How would you

          9  adjudicate or vote on a case where a property is

         10  submitted for landmark designation and the owner

         11  comes before the Commission and says, oh, but it's a

         12  financial hardship for me? How would you balance

         13  that argument against a property that would clearly,

         14  say all sides pretty much agree, it warrants both

         15  historically and architecturally and all the other

         16  base indicia that you look at, how would you balance

         17  that with someone's claim for economic hardship?

         18                 MS. PERLMUTTER: You know, I'm aware

         19  that there are criteria for hardship. I never worked

         20  on a hardship case, so I don't actually know what

         21  the criteria are. So, I think that's issues that

         22  need to be weighed.

         23                 And I would just have to say that I

         24  would have to look at all of the issues and weigh

         25  the condition that way, because without a specific
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          2  case it's hard for me to respond to that, and

          3  without knowing what the Landmarks Law is with

          4  respect to landmark hardships it's hard for me to

          5  respond to that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay, the

          7  Commissioner also brought up that the time that has

          8  to be put into this position is in the range, a

          9  minimum 500 hours, if not more. How will you balance

         10  that with your otherwise very busy profession, and

         11  family interests and everything else?

         12                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Right now on the

         13  community board I probably spend almost that much

         14  time, so by resigning the community board, I'll be

         15  freed up.

         16                 I often work on Committee meeting

         17  minutes til 3:00 in the morning, that's not unusual

         18  at all. So, I'm thinking this is kind of a day job,

         19  I'll get to sleep earlier.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Will it be a

         21  conflict for you with your job in terms of taking

         22  that time away from your job and being at the

         23  Commission, which actually is days as opposed to

         24  evenings, I assume?

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: My office is aware of
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          2  it and supportive of it, and I would work nights to

          3  make up for it probably.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay.

          5                 And let's real briefly just come back

          6  to the conflicts of interest issue, and I guess

          7  really to dove-tail into what Council Member Lappin

          8  said, as an attorney I am perhaps more familiar on a

          9  daily basis of confronting and dealing with

         10  conflicts that arise in our every day lives, whether

         11  you walk into a court room and you know a judge,

         12  whether or not you walk into a City Planning hearing

         13  and you know a Commissioner or not, and the number

         14  one principle behind conflicts of interest in

         15  dealing with them is addressing them, disclosing

         16  them, and when appropriate, getting a ruling from

         17  the appropriate board, which is in this case for us

         18  all the Conflicts of Interest Board.

         19                 So, if I seem, and I say this to

         20  everyone here, if I seem somewhat aggressive towards

         21  those who raise this issue in passing, it's not

         22  that, it's just that I have a very trained

         23  background in knowing what to do when a conflict of

         24  interest is there. And I think what we need from you

         25  is an insurance that every potential conflict will
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          2  be disclosed.

          3                 Any time it's appropriate you will

          4  seek a further opinion from the Conflict of Interest

          5  Board, and bring to this position the integrity that

          6  -- everyone agrees that you have integrity, perhaps

          7  everyone who is not a trained professional in areas

          8  that have daily conflicts don't understand that

          9  there's a process, we study ethics and we know the

         10  process, that if you are willing and motivated to

         11  deal with it, it can be dealt with.

         12                 Will you state on the record your

         13  intent to continue to monitor your own situation and

         14  to follow the law as it requires you to do?

         15                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Absolutely. I would

         16  absolutely do that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. Thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         21  Garodnick.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         23  very much, Madam Chair.

         24                 I think Council Member Lappin did a

         25  good job in talking to you about the December 8th
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          2  letter. I did want to follow-up on one point,

          3  though, which was, you mentioned that when you

          4  discovered what you had done, I don't remember what

          5  word you used, was that you were horrified or

          6  distraught or something like that.

          7                 MS. PERLMUTTER: It's more that I'm

          8  distraught now.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARDONICK: Your

         10  distraught now.

         11                 I guess the question then is, did you

         12  disclose this letter in this process to the

         13  investigating team or whoever was researching your

         14  nomination for this position?

         15                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I didn't. I didn't

         16  think that it was of something of great important to

         17  disclose. We corrected it. It was a cover letter to

         18  an application, and I didn't think that it was of

         19  any importance. And in fact, by the time the vetting

         20  process, review process came through, I had

         21  completely forgotten the existence of this letter.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay. And

         23  when you dealt with it at the time, it sounds to

         24  me-- did you issue a brand new letter in this

         25  situation? Did you create a new transmittal to Mr.
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          2  Warren who was the former Chair of Community Board

          3  8? Or how exactly did you --

          4                 MS. PERLMUTTER: There was a new

          5  letter that was written by someone else in my office

          6  addressed to actually the Chair at that time, by the

          7  time it was amended was new Chair Dave Liston.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARDONICK: Okay. And

          9  as I mentioned before, it's hard to argue that this

         10  is anything but a ministerial communication, which

         11  is something that is permitted under the rules,

         12  although I think we would all agree that it was bad

         13  practice to send the letter on Bryan Cave letterhead

         14  to a partner who also was the Chair. But I will

         15  leave that for now.

         16                 Let me ask you about Bryan Cave

         17  specifically. Do you know how many cases are

         18  presently pending? How many cases does Bryan Cave

         19  have that are presently pending before the Landmarks

         20  Commission?

         21                 MS. PERLMUTTER: It's something like

         22  six.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARDONICK: And have

         24  you worked on any of them?

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I've worked on none
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          2  of the ones that are pending. There is one, I met

          3  with one of the staff members about an item and it

          4  so far seems to be dormant and we've never made an

          5  application.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

          7                 How many people in Bryan Cave are in

          8  your group, the group of people who would actually

          9  be doing the work that would appear before the

         10  Landmarks Commission? How many of you are there?

         11                 MS. PERLMUTTER: There are about six.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Now, is

         13  there a process internally? I know that there must

         14  be a process because I also come from a large law

         15  firm and know that all of the firms have processes,

         16  but what is the process for Bryan Cave by which they

         17  will shield you and you will shield yourself from

         18  any discussion, information, collaboration,

         19  consideration, of any cases that Bryan Cave will in

         20  the future bring that might appear before the

         21  Landmarks Commission. How will all that work

         22  exactly? Because I think Council Member Avella made

         23  the point, it is not an easy thing to do. But help

         24  us understand exactly how that process will work?

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I am not 100 percent
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          2  familiar with it, but I have seen some of the

          3  practice. We have an Ethics Officer who issues an

          4  announcement in general to the whole community, the

          5  Bryan Cave community, that certain issues are not to

          6  be considered in front of another attorney.

          7                 So, they actually subdivide records.

          8  There's instructions that e-mails and so on

          9  shouldn't be copied to that person. There is an

         10  elaborate set of instructions that are given out to

         11  everyone involved in the matter, that separates it.

         12                 I don't know in detail how that would

         13  be handled. I know just from my own experience, I

         14  recently was working on something where I was on the

         15  other side of a matter, and one of our other Land

         16  Use lawyers was on the other side. I didn't go into

         17  his office and he didn't go into mine, in case there

         18  were papers on the two sides, until the matter was

         19  resolved.

         20                 We never talked about the matter. If

         21  we met in the hall we stopped talking. I think there

         22  is such an acknowledgment of the need to maintain

         23  this separation among lawyers that doesn't exist in

         24  any other industry. I mean, as an architect, this

         25  was not something that ever came up. But among
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          2  lawyers it comes up sometimes hourly. So, I think we

          3  have enormous training in responding to this and

          4  being honest about it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Understood.

          6  I guess my one concern would be that that process

          7  should be in place, and maybe just that you don't --

          8                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I'm not in charge of

          9  the process.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: You're not

         11  able to articulate it.

         12                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: But that

         14  obviously needs to be in place when you're talking

         15  about a small department, and it's a group of six

         16  you said, right?

         17                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Because the

         19  challenges have become greater, magnified, the

         20  smaller the group I would think --

         21                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Because

         23  your interactions with each one of those other five

         24  people is significant on a daily basis.

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: In fairness also we
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          2  don't have that many Landmarks applications in our

          3  office, so this isn't something that's happening all

          4  day long every day. There is very few items. As I

          5  said, there is about six in the office right now.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I wanted to

          7  ask you also about Arte New York, which as I

          8  understand it is your husband's architectural design

          9  firm but that under the definition of the Charter,

         10  you are officially associated with it by virtue of

         11  the fact that this is your spouse's business; is

         12  that right?

         13                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: How many

         15  cases does Arte New York presently have pending

         16  before the Landmarks Commission?

         17                 MS. PERLMUTTER: None. I'd say the

         18  last one was like in 1989.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And that

         20  was the last one --

         21                 MS. PERLMUTTER: The last one I can

         22  think of.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So there's

         24  nothing pending that you know of at all?

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Let me just

          3  say, Madam Chair, if I may just ask one last

          4  question? You served as Chair of the Landmarks

          5  Committee of Community Board eight for a number of

          6  years, did you ever encounter anything that you

          7  regard as a close call, as to whether or not you

          8  should have recused yourself but did not? Was there

          9  any situation in which you felt like you had to

         10  struggle on whether or not it would have been

         11  appropriate for you to recuse yourself?

         12                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I can't think of

         13  anything, no.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So in any

         15  situation in which you had something coming from

         16  Bryan Cave, you recused?

         17                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And you

         19  also said that even though you were not required to

         20  not work on cases emanating from Bryan Cave, if they

         21  were in fact going to Community Board 8, you did not

         22  work on those cases; is that what you said before?

         23                 MS. PERLMUTTER: At Bryan Cave you

         24  mean?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Yes. At
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          2  Bryan Cave, for a case going before Community Board

          3  8, you said you did not work on those cases?

          4                 MS. PERLMUTTER: No, what I had said

          5  was that there were things that I recused myself

          6  from on the community board, even though by the

          7  strict definition of recusal I wasn't required to

          8  recuse. Things where I felt that it was perhaps not

          9  something that I should vote on.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Can you

         11  give us an example or two of that?

         12                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I would say maybe a

         13  close friend coming to present or something where

         14  maybe it had been a former business partner,

         15  something like that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So, let me

         17  just clarify one point. Obviously, you recused from

         18  voting on any matter coming before Community Board 8

         19  that emanated from Bryan Cave.

         20                 On working on those applications, you

         21  are allowed, as I understand it under the rules, to

         22  work on those cases, so long as you do in fact,

         23  recuse yourself from the community board

         24  consideration of that matter?

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And you did

          3  work on the cases, but you just were not present at

          4  the -- you recused or made yourself invisible as you

          5  described it?

          6                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And that

          8  was what you did in the situation of the letter of

          9  December 8 with Royal Charter Properties?

         10                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And also on

         12  the example that Council Member Lappin asked you

         13  about, Tamarkin?

         14                 MS. PERLMUTTER: That one I did not

         15  work on because -- I didn't work on it, no. I didn't

         16  work on the items that are listed in a lot of the

         17  letters that have been going around that are the

         18  landmarks applications, and I didn't in fact work on

         19  any of the landmarks items.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you.

         21  That's all I have. I just want to make the comment

         22  that I think it is important for all of us to

         23  remember, that when you have professionals who are

         24  aspiring to be part of a Commission like this, it is

         25  not unusual for there to be a need to wear different
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          2  hats at different times. And if you cut off all

          3  opportunity to do that, you cut off some of the most

          4  qualified people for the positions.

          5                 So, thank you for your time, and I

          6  appreciate it.

          7                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          9  Member Garodnick.

         10                 Before I hand over to Council Member

         11  Sears, I just need to understand, Ms. Perlmutter,

         12  you just mentioned you did not work on any of the

         13  matters that were listed or have been going around.

         14  One of the items that had been mentioned was St.

         15  John The Divine matter.

         16                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: So, you were not

         18  --

         19                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I did not work on

         20  that item.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: You did not work

         22  on that item, and you did not represent the firm at

         23  the Commission.

         24                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Were you at the
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          2  Landmarks Commission for the hearing on St. John The

          3  Divine?

          4                 MS. PERLMUTTER: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

          6  Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 Thank you for allowing me to speak.

         10  I'm not a member of the Committee and I certainly do

         11  appreciate it.

         12                 I need to remind the Committee that

         13  Ms. Perlmutter had a waiver from the Conflicts of

         14  Interest Board.

         15                 We in the Council abide by the

         16  Conflicts of Interest Board ruling. There isn't a

         17  member in the Council that has not had some ruling

         18  because of ambiguities, or questions, relating to an

         19  issue of theirs. So, I have no doubt about the

         20  conflict of interest that may arise and the fact

         21  that Ms. Perlmutter and the Administration is very

         22  sensitive to that issue, and after receiving a

         23  waiver from the Conflicts of Interest Board, I have

         24  no doubt that for me that's not an issue.

         25                 But why I am speaking is that the
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          2  Borough of Queens had two commissioners on the

          3  Commission, with Ms. Perlmutter's appointment, it is

          4  now reduced to one. This is a borough that is very

          5  large, that has landmarking in it, and will continue

          6  to have landmarking. The fact that it has reduced

          7  the number of commissioners from this Borough is

          8  very disturbing, and this is the vehicle in which I

          9  wish to express that.

         10                 I will probably vote for Ms.

         11  Perlmutter, but I vote having the Administration to

         12  be aware that reducing the number of commissioners

         13  from Queens I think is really improper. I think it's

         14  sending not a good message to the Borough of Queens,

         15  and I would also remind my colleagues to do that to

         16  any other borough but Manhattan would be just as

         17  offensive. And I think that in speaking before you

         18  it's a statement more about the process that had

         19  been done than about the nominee. Because I have not

         20  doubts that the nominee will serve the

         21  Administration and will serve this City and will

         22  serve the Council, but I do object to the fact that

         23  not only was Queens not approached, but it's hard to

         24  believe that in the Borough of Queens, there isn't

         25  someone as qualified that would serve on this
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          2  Commission. And the fact that we had two, two

          3  extremely well qualified, is really outrageous that

          4  it's reduced to one because there is not one person,

          5  over 2 million people who are very sensitive to

          6  landmarking, very sensitive to what it means and

          7  supports this Commission. I think it's an outrage

          8  that there was not one person that could be found in

          9  the Borough of Queens. And as I say, this is no

         10  reflection on Ms. Perlmutter, it is a question of

         11  the process. And certainly, I thought we were to all

         12  look at the fact that we were to become all the

         13  boroughs in having their identities and reaching out

         14  to the other boroughs.

         15                 I find that when you reduce the

         16  representation from the Borough and transfer it to

         17  another one, where the Commission is extremely

         18  outweighed with members from Manhattan, and I have

         19  no problem with that, but when you begin to reduce

         20  the numbers, I have a problem with that. And I would

         21  think every one of my colleagues would have a

         22  problem with that.

         23                 So, I thank you very much. And as I

         24  said, it is not a reflection on Ms. Perlmutter, and

         25  I will vote for it. I would certainly urge all of
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          2  you to consider the other boroughs in your dealings

          3  with the Administration and when it comes to the

          4  Commission and landmarking in itself.

          5                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          7  Member Sears. And I'd like to just mention again how

          8  I have expressed to Chairman Tierney, as well as the

          9  Administration, that we have matters that still

         10  remain to be resolved concerning hold-overs, and the

         11  equity amongst boroughs to be reflective on the

         12  Commission and the balance of the different

         13  technical assistance that is going to be provided on

         14  the Commission.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I appreciate

         16  that comment, and your sensitivity to it. And

         17  certainly my objection is not that Ms. Perlmutter

         18  would be insensitive to the other boroughs or

         19  landmarking, but what I find a problem with that

         20  being said to you, is the fact that this was an

         21  opportunity to maintain at least the two in the

         22  Borough of Queens.

         23                 That's my objection and I hope I'm

         24  stating that fairly, and without any diminishing the

         25  importance of the nominee, or the credibility or the
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          2  capabilities of the nominee. It has nothing to do

          3  with that, but I think the process and the fact that

          4  Queens was ignored is pretty outrageous.

          5                 So, I take with a grain of salt what

          6  was said.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Thank you, Council Member Sears.

         11                 Chairman Tierney.

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: May I just briefly

         13  clarify that? Vicky Match Soona, whose spot on the

         14  Commission is being taken --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If you can speak

         16  into the mike, Chairman Tierney.

         17                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Oh, I'm sorry.

         18                 Vicky Match Soona, the commissioner

         19  whose spot on the Commission, if Margery is

         20  confirmed, she will occupy that spot, she originally

         21  was appointed to the Commission I believe in 1991

         22  when she lived at Silver Cup Studios, I believe is

         23  where she lived in Queens. And yes, Councilwoman is

         24  totally correct she was appointed originally in 1991

         25  as a Queens Commissioner. She joins Joan Gerner, who
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          2  is from Douglaston, who is a second Queens

          3  Commissioner. She has lived in Manhattan, as it

          4  happens in the same part of Manhattan, actually,

          5  where Margery lives, for as long as I've known her,

          6  I don't know when she moved from Queens into

          7  Manhattan, I believe it was several years ago,

          8  meaning I don't know, somebody could obviously, we

          9  could check that. So, first of all, I try not to

         10  think of my commissioners, although, first we obey

         11  the law, which is at least one commissioner from

         12  every borough. Secondly, I've always thought of

         13  Vicky Match Soona, in my interaction with her, as

         14  being from Manhattan, although originally appointed

         15  from Queens.

         16                 I am extremely mindful of Queens, not

         17  just in the designation process, and I hope I've

         18  demonstrated that, or continue to demonstrate that,

         19  but I have a list of candidates, if you will, or

         20  potential nominees, that include many people from

         21  Queens. And all I can just say is stay tuned, and I

         22  am very mindful of that issue and will seek to

         23  address it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Chairman Tierney,

         25  that's exactly why what you have just said qualified
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          2  exactly the reasons why we need to resolve all of

          3  these hold-overs, because at the end of the day, we

          4  do not scrutinize hold-overs, we scrutinize

          5  appointees.

          6                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: We're doing that.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I will work with

          9  you in making sure that amongst your lists and the

         10  one I will be submitting to you --

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Great.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: -- That we work

         13  together to make sure that we deal with this.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Madam Chair,

         15  may I just respond to one thing, please?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I think that

         18  when an opportunity presents itself, and I

         19  understand she moved into Manhattan not too long

         20  ago, but that isn't the issue. The issue is she was

         21  representing Queens. The fact is, there are

         22  hold-overs, and I don't know how many or whatever,

         23  but the fact is this was an opportunity to take a

         24  holdover, I am assuming all your holdovers are as

         25  qualified. What I am saying and I'm stressing, is
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          2  that when you're losing someone from a borough, I

          3  think it's inappropriate to replace that someone

          4  from another borough, even though you say you like

          5  to look at your commissioners as a whole, and I

          6  agree, the fact is each borough must have

          7  representation and for probably one of the smallest

          8  boroughs it has more than any other.

          9                 Now, as I stated earlier, I don't

         10  think the commissioners are insensitive, but if

         11  that's the case, you don't need any other

         12  representatives from any other borough. Just appoint

         13  them from Manhattan. But that isn't the case,

         14  because every borough is important.

         15                 And I think when there is an

         16  opportunity to really keep the number without even

         17  adding them, that that's a major consideration in an

         18  appointment.

         19                 And I won't belabor this. I feel very

         20  strongly, Commissioner, that if all your hold-overs

         21  are as qualified, or they wouldn't be on your

         22  waiting list, I really believe that that should have

         23  gone to Queens.

         24                 As I say it again, it's absolutely

         25  casting no discriminatory things against Ms.
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          2  Perlmutter. I think the process was a little flawed

          3  here.

          4                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          6  Member Sears.

          7                 Council Member Katz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you. The

          9  hour is long. I just have a very quick question, two

         10  quick questions for you, and if you could answer

         11  them quickly, that would be great.

         12                 One of the issues that a lot of my

         13  colleagues up here are talking about is the

         14  registered lobbyists this year.

         15                 Can you give me your opinion on that

         16  quick?

         17                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Registered lobbyists.

         18  We are required by law to register for a lawfirm and

         19  we appear before any agencies, and our lawfirm has a

         20  policy of registering everyone in the Land Use

         21  practice on the off chance that somebody may appear,

         22  it's required.

         23                 So, we register everyone, even if not

         24  everyone will actually work on the project.

         25                 The other thing I just would like to
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          2  say in what I actually do. My clients and I meet

          3  with the agencies to try to come up with a solution

          4  for their project that will conform to agency

          5  criteria about ideal projects.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The last --

          7  Madam Chair, are we going to have an opportunity to

          8  talk on the record before we vote, as opposed to

          9  asking the candidate questions at this moment?

         10  Because I'll withhold my comments then, if we can

         11  talk before we vote.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         15  Weprin.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair.

         18                 I, too, want to weigh in on the

         19  Queens issue. One is I'd like to state for the

         20  record I'm impressed with Ms. Perlmutter's

         21  credentials and the presentation, and there's

         22  nothing I've heard in the testimony that would, in

         23  my opinion, disqualify you from serving on the Board

         24  and being an excellent commissioner. So, I'm

         25  inclined to vote for your confirmation.
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          2                 Having said that, though, I recognize

          3  that Vicky Match Soona may have moved from Queens to

          4  Manhattan, but the Soonas, her family is very well

          5  known in Queens, are very well rooted in Queens.

          6  Both Soona brothers, from Silver Cup Studios, grew

          7  up in Queens, they served on a number of boards in

          8  Queens County, they're well known to elected

          9  officials and community leaders in Queens, and in

         10  that regard it's really not relevant if she

         11  physically is in Manhattan. I think people in Queens

         12  feel that if an issue came up affecting Queens, that

         13  they would have an ear on that issue because of the

         14  contact that she had with the borough.

         15                 So, I just wanted to mention that to

         16  Chairman Tierney in particular, when you're talking

         17  to the Mayor and the appointments people, if you

         18  could express to them the fact that there are a

         19  number of hold-overs from Manhattan, and we would

         20  sincerely appreciate, assuming we do confirm this

         21  nominee, to substitute one of the other Manhattan

         22  seats with the Queens seat. If you could take that

         23  under advisement?

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: I will take that

         25  under serious advisement. Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

          5  Lappin.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 I just wanted to come back to, while

          9  I understand that if you are confirmed you will

         10  recuse yourself from any matters that come before

         11  the Commission that Bryan Cave has worked on, and

         12  you will not work on any issues at Bryan Cave that

         13  will come before the Commission, but I don't think

         14  it would be appropriate for your firm to benefit in

         15  any way from you being a Commissioner.

         16                 So, I would like to ask you on the

         17  record, how do you feel about Bryan Cave putting on

         18  their website, when you go onto the website and they

         19  list different areas of expertise and you click on

         20  Landmarks or you click on Land Use that it says a

         21  member of our team is -- this is an important issue,

         22  so I want to ask on the record what your opinion of

         23  that is. So, what's your opinion of that?

         24                 MS. PERLMUTTER: My opinion is it

         25  shouldn't appear on the Bryan Cave website.

                                                            126

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay. And I

          3  would hope that if you are confirmed, that that

          4  request would be made to your firm, and I would

          5  extend that to your individual area and practice

          6  that you shouldn't be attaining clients to represent

          7  them before other City agencies, promoting the fact

          8  that you are a Landmarks Commissioner.

          9                 So, I would like to kind of get your

         10  commitment on the record that that wouldn't become

         11  part of your promotional package.

         12                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I'm thinking it won't

         13    be part of my promotional package.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay. Because

         15  it is, you know, it's allowed under the rules, we've

         16  gone round and round about that today, but I don't

         17  like it. I don't like that it is. I'm not

         18  comfortable about it, but it is the way that it is,

         19  and you won't be compensated for this position. So,

         20  I want to know that you, and particularly your firm,

         21  are not going to benefit from this in any way.

         22                 MS. PERLMUTTER: It won't be in

         23  promotional materials.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I just wanted to

         25  ask if there's a representative from the Conflicts
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          2  of Interest Board? I was told that there was.

          3                 (Unidentified speaker from the

          4  audience, not using the microphone.)

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: So, if I ask you a

          6  question, you cannot answer? Okay, thank you.

          7                 We have to move this particular

          8  hearing next door, because we have to begin

          9  ceremonials, for the sake of moving today's agenda

         10  for Stated Council.

         11                 I'd ask everyone, as quickly as

         12  possible, to please join us next door in the

         13  Committee Room, so we can resume this hearing on

         14  Rules, Privileges and Elections.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 (Recess taken.)

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: This hearing,

         18  Rules, Privileges and Elections, I'd like to just

         19  have the public cooperate with us in allowing us to

         20  call you in panels of four. I will give each person

         21  on that panel 30 seconds, due to the fact that it is

         22  past 2:00 in the afternoon, and we have yet to begin

         23  our Stated day. The agenda is full, we still have

         24  two other matters in this Committee. I lost half my

         25  Committee. I would really appreciate your
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          2  cooperation.

          3                 I have everyone's written

          4  testimonies, and I can assure you, this matter has

          5  not been taken lightly. I hope that you can

          6  appreciate the interaction members have had with the

          7  public, as well as the candidate and the Chairman,

          8  and our vehement, just we are holding this matter

          9  with the highest integrity here, and we want to be

         10  able to gather all the facts and substance.

         11                 If you do not wish to testify, and

         12  you'd like to just submit your testimony, it will be

         13  read into the record, as well.

         14                 I'd like to begin by calling Anthony

         15  Tuna, James Trent, Annice Alt and Helene Simon. Are

         16  these people here?

         17                 Mr. Tuna? Mr. Tung. I apologize. Mr.

         18  Tung. Mr. Tung is present.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: For the

         20  record, it looks like a Tung on the sheet.

         21                 MR. TUNG: I'm a former Commissioner

         22  from Staten Island, so I tend to look like a fish.

         23                 My name is Anthony Tung and I live at

         24  36 Cooper Square in Manhattan. I am a former member

         25  of the New York City Landmarks Preservation
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          2  Commission, serving as the representative from

          3  Staten Island from 1978 to 1988. The author of

          4  Preserving the World's Great Cities, Examination of

          5  Conservation Practice; 18 Cities Across the Globe

          6  and a visiting lecturer on International Urban

          7  Preservation at MIT. I speak today in opposition to

          8  the appointment of Margery Perlmutter as a member of

          9  the New York City Landmarks Preservation Commission,

         10  because I believe that her professional practice as

         11  a lobbyist for clients whose activities have been

         12  and remain subject to the rulings of the Landmarks

         13  Commission produces a continuing potential conflict

         14  of interest in numerous of her responsibilities as a

         15  commissioner.

         16                 And, finally, and Madam Chair, I'm

         17  just skipping my testimony to go to the final thing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: No, I understand.

         19                 MR. TUNG: Which is in support of all

         20  those community groups who are coming here today who

         21  have monitored the Commission over all these years

         22  and are having problems with this appointment.

         23                 And so I end finally with this:

         24  Finally, what is the necessity for such an

         25  encumbered appointment, when there are an abundance
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          2  of unencumbered, first rate preservation architects

          3  practicing in New York? In fact, a case can very

          4  well be made that there are more qualified

          5  architects practicing in New York than in any other

          6  City of the World. There is no need to have an

          7  encumbered appointment for this position. I speak as

          8  a Commissioner who devoted not 500 hours a year to

          9  the Landmarks Commission, but more than 1,000 for

         10  eight years and I was honored and never had a

         11  conflict of interest.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Tung.

         15                 Mr. Trent, Ms. Alt, and Ms. Simon are

         16  not present. I will move.

         17                 Annette Rosen. Rick Bell. Carolyn

         18  Kent. Barry Schneider.

         19                 MR. BELL: Happy to have 30 seconds,

         20  then I'll submit written testimony. I'm going to

         21  skip most of what I've written, although there have

         22  been fewer voices in support than there should be.

         23  We've heard a lot of people who are talking about

         24  lobbying as an architect, and as the Executive

         25  Director of the American Institute Architects, New
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          2  York Chapter, I'd like to register the strong

          3  support of the architectural community, at least the

          4  AIA, in favor of this nomination.

          5                 Margery Perlmutter is an

          6  extraordinary and multi-talented individual,

          7  combining disparate skills, and that's been

          8  demonstrated again and again.

          9                 The important point in the written

         10  testimony that I'd like to make is about her

         11  qualifications as an architect, because few have

         12  said that. The AIA awarded Ms. Perlmutter the first

         13  prize award in 2004 a new Housing New York

         14  competition, an endeavor initiated, sponsored and

         15  funded by the --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'm sorry, what

         17  was your name?

         18                 MR. BELL: Sorry. My name is Rick

         19  Bell, Executive Director of the New York Chapter of

         20  the American Institute of Architects.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Bell, as you

         22  can see, 30 seconds is not much time. I apologize.

         23                 MR. BELL: I was going to speak

         24  faster.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If you can wrap
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          2  up?

          3                 MR. BELL: I'll wrap up. The last two

          4  sentences of that paragraph in the testimony talk to

          5  the creative endeavor for a solution in a City

          6  Council-sponsored competition. The jury stated that

          7  her efforts respects both the manmade and natural

          8  context while proposing a phase and sustainable

          9  approach to an extended mixed use urban community.

         10                 I think if the Council decided that

         11  this nomination did not make sense, there would be

         12  no architect who would be ever able to serve on the

         13  Committee without having to recuse themselves from

         14  projects.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         16                 MR. BELL: And I think this is a very

         17  good appointment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Bell.

         20                 Ms. Rosen.

         21                 MS. KENT: Annette Rosen has had to

         22  leave. She is not here any longer.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'm sorry, I had

         24  stated this before, and I had made a mistake. If

         25  you're not present, I cannot allow the person to
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          2  adopt testimony.

          3                 MS. KENT: No, I'm just telling you

          4  that Annette Rosen, I'm not Annette Rosen. She had

          5  to leave.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Carolyn Kent.

          7                 MS. KENT: That's me.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

          9                 MS. KENT: All right. And I just hear

         10  that I have 30 seconds?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Correct.

         12                 MS. KENT: Oh boy. I don't really know

         13  how to proceed with 30 seconds. I have made an

         14  elaborate shift around.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Are you in favor

         16  or opposition?

         17                 MS. KENT: Let me -- all right, let me

         18  do the best I can with 30 seconds.

         19                 I have come from the Morningside

         20  Heights Historic District Committee to oppose the

         21  nomination.

         22                 The development preferences of this

         23  nominee are too glaringly evident in the listing as

         24  a lobbyist for the Cathedral's plan to develop, so

         25  listed on the NYC.gov, to allow us, who are deeply,
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          2  deeply concerned, for the damage that is possibly

          3  about to be done to this world site, to ever be

          4  enthusiastic about watching someone ready to be

          5  identified publicly with this issue of opening the

          6  close to development unregulated by the Commission,

          7  and lacking public hearing to be put on the

          8  Landmarks Commission.

          9                 Now, I brought a very complimentary

         10  reference to Melinda Katz, to Simcha Felder, because

         11  I really believe that the City Council's unanimous

         12  disapproval of the development-driven designation --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: His ears were

         14  ringing in the back.

         15                 MS. KENT: What?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: I said his

         17  ears were ringing, Simcha Felder.

         18                 MS. KENT: Right. I hope so. They

         19  should be ringing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I take

         21  exception.

         22                 MS. KENT: Right. No, no, no.

         23                 So, anyway the unanimous disapproval

         24  of this development-driven designation marks a

         25  critical victory in the battle to retain the
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          2  Commission's integrity, and to retain its absolute

          3  commitment to preservation, let it leave development

          4  to a few other agencies we could name.

          5                 I am very disturbed, however, having

          6  sat through the hearing to this moment, that so many

          7  Councilpeople are expressing a willingness to vote

          8  for a nominee who has not been closely questioned on

          9  the question of development preference over

         10  preservation. This is the critical question.

         11  Conflict of interest is important. The critical

         12  question that this entire unanimous Council took a

         13  strong position on on October 24, '03, was the

         14  failure of LPC to show sufficient protective

         15  responsibility towards the Cathedral that has this

         16  cockamamie build for money scheme that is going to

         17  land us all in a very, very sad place in Morningside

         18  Heights with our 1,300 resident petition signatures,

         19  we are battling it with might and mane and we will

         20  continue to.

         21                 But I say to you as Chair of Rules,

         22  you've got a tough job and you've done such a

         23  pleasant hearing, but you're missing the big point.

         24  The big point is not really conflict of interest.

         25  That has been rehearsed. The big point is the
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          2  direction, the new development, that clearly on the

          3  record is happening before our eyes right now.

          4                 We oppose this nominee because she

          5  seems utterly inappropriate as one who will shift

          6  the direction back to an absolute civic-minded

          7  devotion to preservation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If I can have some

          9  order.

         10                 MS. KENT: And may I just have one

         11  more --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: On both sides, the

         13  public as well as our members, I need to move this

         14  hearing.

         15                 MS. KENT: May I have one final

         16  sentence?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: As quickly as

         18  possible, Ms. Kent.

         19                 MS. KENT: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And I would

         21  appreciate your indulgence in my willingness to

         22  allow you to go beyond 30 seconds.

         23                 MS. KENT: I really appreciate that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Up to five minutes

         25  you've already --
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          2                 MS. KENT: Just one short sentence.

          3                 The unanimous --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Kent?

          5                 MS. KENT: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I would appreciate

          7  if we could move to the next person of the panel.

          8                 MS. KENT: All right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         10  Kent.

         11                 MS. KENT: All right. Well, I hope

         12  everything I said was heard.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         14  Kent.

         15                 MS. KENT: You're welcome.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Schneider.

         17                 MR. SCHNEIDER: I'm sorry. I hope you

         18  will indulge me as you have the previous speaker. My

         19  name is Barry Schneider. I served for three years

         20  Chairman of Community Board 8 from 1998 to 2000, and

         21  I'm intimately familiar with Margery Perlmutter's

         22  work as co-chair of the Landmarks Committee of

         23  Community Board 8. She's been absolutely exemplary

         24  in balance, fairness, integrity, awareness of

         25  conditions, respect for the public, respect for the
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          2  community board, respect for the process.

          3                 In a capsule she will bring her

          4  heightened sense of fairness, balance and concerns

          5  and respect for all parties involved to the

          6  Landmarks Preservation Commission.

          7                 I'm going to continue.

          8                 If I were to use a glossary to define

          9  the work, it would be wisdom, experience, keen

         10  judgment, fairness, civility and the rare ability to

         11  listen.

         12                 To answer one of the questions that

         13  Council Member Garodnick raised regarding the

         14  Tamarkin project. That is better known to you folks

         15  as the City Bank building and Woody Allen, 91st and

         16  Madison Avenue. Margery Perlmutter never uttered a

         17  word on that project. Her partner Bob Davis

         18  sheparded this through the Community Board from

         19  beginning to end. Margery was nonexistent. I want to

         20  make that very clear.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Schneider. I appreciate that.

         23                 I'd like to call up Hal Bromm,

         24  Charles Warren, Hilda Regier, David Liston. Is Ms.

         25  Armistead here? Yes? No? Will Sanchez. Will Sanchez?
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          2  Please.

          3                 If you can just state your name.

          4                 Mr. Warren, you can begin.

          5                 MR. WARREN: Yes. I'm Charles Warren,

          6  the former Chair of Community Board 8, as of the end

          7  of last year, and the person who received that

          8  letter. I've known Margery Perlmutter. Also I'm a

          9  partner in the firm of Bryan Cave, LLP, and I've

         10  known Margery and worked with Margery. No, I'm not

         11  in the Land Use group at Bryan Cave, and everything

         12  everyone said about her ability is absolutely

         13  correct. I think she really brings a rare ability to

         14  look at things in an intellectually rigorous way

         15  that will really help the Commission.

         16                 I think that she should not be

         17  penalized for the fact that she represented clients

         18  in Land Use matters, and as she indicated, she did

         19  very little Landmarks matters and I think she's done

         20  an exemplary job as chairing the Landmarks Committee

         21  of Community Board 8. And all of us who know her

         22  well, I think can testify to that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Warren.

         25                 Ms. Regier.
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          2                 MS. REGIER: I've been asked to read a

          3  statement on behalf of Beverly Moss Spatt.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'm sorry, Ms.

          5  Spatt.

          6                 MS. REGIER: She is here, so I will

          7  refer to her.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Can you come up?

          9                 Well, Ms. Regier, did you have a

         10  statement? You're reading on behalf of Ms. Spatt?

         11  She doesn't go yet. Does she have a form? Did you

         12  fill out a form? I will call you. When I call you

         13  it's your turn, okay?

         14                 MS. REGIER: However, I will say that

         15  I think that this potential appointment is not in

         16  the best interest of the Landmarks Commission, the

         17  Landmarks Preservation Community.

         18                 There's an ancient dictum, you can't

         19  serve two masters, and I think that's true on a

         20  subconscious level, as well as any conflict of

         21  interest consideration.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         23  Regier.

         24                 Mr. Liston.

         25                 MR. LISTON: Hi. Good afternoon. My
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          2  name is David Liston. I'm the Chairman of Manhattan

          3  Community Board 8. I want to be very clear, though,

          4  that I do not speak today to you on behalf of

          5  Manhattan Community Board 8.

          6                 The views I express are purely my

          7  own, deeply held personal views. So, with that

          8  understanding, let me be very clear that I have had

          9  the opportunity on Community Board 8 to work with

         10  Margery Perlmutter when on the Landmarks Committee

         11  prior to my election as Chair of the Board.

         12                 During that time I had the

         13  opportunity and since then as Chair, I've had the

         14  opportunity to observe her work and I can tell you

         15  with absolute confidence, complete certainty, that

         16  she brings to the work of the Board, and will bring

         17  to the work of the Commission a sense of fairness

         18  and attention to detail, a sense of integrity that

         19  will serve her and more importantly the Commission

         20  and the public well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Liston.

         23                 MR. LISTON: I also want to -- thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Sanchez.
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          2                 MR. SANCHEZ: Hello. My name is Will

          3  Sanchez. I am a member of Community Board 8. I am

          4  also a founding member of our local CERT, Community

          5  Emergency Response Team.

          6                 My special reason for speaking today,

          7  I am supporting Margery Perlmutter's application as

          8  Commission.

          9                 Margery is fair, objective, balanced,

         10  and a smart individual with unique talents. As

         11  Co-Chair of Community Board 8's Landmarks Committee,

         12  Margery listens to both sides with argument and is

         13  not an advocate of either.

         14                 When needed, she explains clearly and

         15  directly the issues that Board members are called

         16  upon to address.

         17                 She keeps our focus on the

         18  appropriateness of the application. Moreover, we can

         19  tell from her lively step and eye contact that Ms.

         20  Perlmutter very much enjoys sharing her knowledge,

         21  which makes us much more attentive.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Sanchez.

         24                 MR. SANCHEZ: In conclusion, I urge

         25  you to make a smart investment in appointing
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          2  Margery.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Sanchez.

          5                 Ms. Hedi White. Michael Even. Susan

          6  Shapro.

          7                 MS. SHAPIRO: Shapiro.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Shapiro. Albert

          9  Bernett. William Higgins. Avra Petrides. Elise

         10  Quasebarth. Amy Newman. Borne Nathalie. Elizabeth

         11  Ashby. Candida do Amaral. Zack Winestine. Claudia

         12  Fischer. Daniel McCalla. Nadine Kraemer. Robert

         13  Furman. Pedro Marmolagos. Linda Eskenas. Annie

         14  Kurtin.

         15                 If you can begin, Mr. McCalla.

         16                 MR. McCALLA: All right. Good

         17  afternoon.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Good afternoon.

         19                 MR. McCALLA: My name is Daniel

         20  McCalla, from Brooklyn. I oppose this nomination due

         21  to it's a mayoral nomination, it's imbalance of the

         22  committee. It's a question of why it was not a

         23  committee member from Queens. And there is always a

         24  question and concern about rubberstamping the

         25  Landmarks Commission.
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          2                 With this Administration's

          3  pro-development, the problems we have with Board of

          4  Standards and Appeals and the Buildings Department,

          5  there is always that fear that this is just another

          6  step of over-development.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

          9  McCalla.

         10                 MR. FURMAN: My name is Robert Furman.

         11  I'm representing the 4 Boro Neighborhood

         12  Preservation Alliance, and the Queens Preservation

         13  Council. I'd like to begin by seconding Helen Sears

         14  comment about representation for Queens.

         15                 I'd like to relate to the ethical

         16  questions this way. You have a choice here of

         17  whether you can follow the minimum rules the law

         18  requires you to do, whether you can hold this City

         19  to a higher standard. Given that the average person

         20  out there regards all politicians as crook, crooks,

         21  I think that when you put someone on the Board who

         22  is there as a rain maker, even though she knows all

         23  the rules, you are diminishing the respect for the

         24  citizens of the people of New York for the

         25  governmental processes and for the elected officials
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          2  who serve it.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MS. ESKENAS: Thank you. New York City

          5  is reeling from overdevelopment. We are seeing our

          6  landmarks, but not only our landmarks, but our

          7  historic neighborhoods, and they're all historic,

          8  destroyed, gouged out by over-developers, who have

          9  also put our economy because they have falsely

         10  inflated prices and that market will fall.

         11                 Why would we ever consider a

         12  developer's attorney and lobbyist to be a

         13  commissioner on the LPC? It's inconceivable. We have

         14  plenty of people that are qualified. We shouldn't

         15  be sitting here now.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If you can wrap

         17  up, Ms. Eskenas?

         18                 MS. ESKENAS: You know, we're talking

         19  about architects being on the Landmarks Commission.

         20  We should have historians on the Landmarks

         21  Commission, it's a historic landmarks preservation

         22  commission. Many architects do not like

         23  preservation. They go from an entirely different

         24  point of view, and we have seen this over and over

         25  again.
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          2                 We need to have historians.

          3                 In addition to that --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Eskenas?

          5                 MS. ESKENAS: Yes?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Please wrap up.

          7                 MS. ESKENAS: Okay.

          8                 All right. There is also Staten

          9  Island that I represent. I'm from the Preservation

         10  League of Staten Island and the 4 Boros. We have had

         11  our island raped. We need to save our buildings. And

         12  we will have less representation and more

         13  representation from Manhattan, which is a major

         14  issue, which we have been, you know, it obviously is

         15  a major issue that we all have been discussing with

         16  Landmarks.

         17                 These things, I don't know why we're

         18  here. I don't know why we're trying to decide

         19  whether we should have a developer's lawyer beyond

         20  the Commission. It's absurd. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         22                 Ms. Kurtin.

         23                 MS. KURTIN: Good afternoon, Chair

         24  Reyna and members of the Committee. My name is Annie

         25  Kurtin and I am here today to speak in strong
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          2  support of the nomination of Margery Perlmutter to

          3  the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

          4                 Ms. Perlmutter is a person of

          5  enormous background and experience in the field of

          6  Land Use regulation, including Landmarks Law and

          7  landmarks preservation.

          8                 Her professional experience, first as

          9  an architect and then as a lawyer, gives her a deep

         10  understanding of its historic preservation and its

         11  urban context.

         12                 She knows the landmarks laws and is

         13  concerned with strengthening them.

         14                 She knows about the structural and

         15  technological aspects of buildings, and she knows

         16  architectural history, and New York's history.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Please wrap up,

         18  Ms. Kurtin.

         19                 MS. KURTIN: Most importantly, she is

         20  a person of enormous integrity, who is reasonable,

         21  analytical and informed. She is a committed New

         22  Yorker who has given a great deal of time and

         23  passion to bettering the City's physical health

         24  through her early work at the Landmarks Conservancy

         25  and her work as an architect, as a lawyer and as
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          2  co-chair of the Landmarks Committee of Community

          3  Board 8. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

          5  Kurtin.

          6                 MS. KURTIN: Thank you for the

          7  opportunity to testify.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

          9                 I'd like to call up Januaria de

         10  Bourbon. Sherida Paulsen. Jack Taylor. Christina

         11  Davis. Jan Rothschild.

         12                 Please, Ms. DeBourbon.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: The light has

         14  to be off to be on. It's a City Council thing.

         15                 MS. DeBOURBON: Thank you. All right,

         16  I just want to say I'm against the nomination. I

         17  think her credential are incredible, but I'm very

         18  scared of all the development and the lawyer that

         19  she represents.

         20                 I have seen my neighborhood, 50 years

         21  at Columbia University, I've seen it completely

         22  somehow destroyed, and becoming a campus. I've seen

         23  what's happening with the Cathedral, where they want

         24  even to develop and build something. That company is

         25  disreputable, number one. They have terrible
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          2  lawsuits in California, and that whole Cathedral

          3  should be saved, all the land, with the right

          4  fundraising.

          5                 We wonder how many other buildings

          6  that are not spoken of are slowing but very steadily

          7  demolished around New York. I have known quite a

          8  few.

          9                 So, my concerns is that there's a

         10  conflict of interest there. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Press the button.

         12  Can we leave the buttons on?

         13                 MS. PAULSEN: Thank you. I'm Sherida

         14  Paulsen. I'm am architect and former Chairman and

         15  commissioner of the Landmarks Commission. I sat at

         16  the table for nine years. The Landmarks Law and the

         17  Landmarks Commission's performance rests upon people

         18  of the highest quality sitting at that commission

         19  making the decisions. We need the architects, we

         20  need the lawyers, we need the planners, we need an

         21  historian, we need all of those people at the table.

         22  Because what are landmarks.

         23                 Landmarks are buildings, landmarks

         24  are landscapes, landmarks are the City and that's

         25  what we need at the table. I wholeheartedly support
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          2  Margery Perlmutter's appointment to this Commission.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

          4  Paulsen.

          5                 Mr. Taylor is not with us? He's with

          6  us. Fantastic. I saw all these women.

          7                 Mr. Taylor.

          8                 MR. TAYLOR: Okay, sorry about that.

          9  Thank you, Madam Chairman. My name is Jack Taylor.

         10  Those of us in the preservation world must deal with

         11  community boards, and to those of us who are

         12  familiar with some of them, though I personally am

         13  not with Community Board 8, except by reputation,

         14  the actions of community boards on historic

         15  preservation and landmarking issues have sadly --

         16  I'm opposed to the nomination.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Taylor, thank

         18  you very much. Did you submit your testimony?

         19                 MR. TAYLOR: I have. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Fantastic. I do

         21  apologize.

         22                 Christina Davis.

         23                 MS. DAVIS: An honor to testify on

         24  behalf of Margery Perlmutter. I'm currently Chair of

         25  the New York Landmarks Preservation Foundation,
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          2  member of the State Board of Historic Preservation.

          3  Most important, I was her co-chair from 2002 to 2004

          4  of Landmarks Committee of Community Board 8 where

          5  I've served for 14 years.

          6                 Came to know her well, developed

          7  tremendous for her integrity, dedication, judgment

          8  and professional expertise.

          9                 She guided this community landmarks

         10  community to a new level of excellence and insight

         11  and I'm confident she'll bring the same disciplined

         12  and fair approach to the Landmarks Preservation

         13  Commission.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         16  Davis.

         17                 Jan Rothschild.

         18                 MS. ROTHSCHILD: Hi. I'm Jan

         19  Rothschild. I'm the Associate Director of the

         20  Whitney Museum of American Art, and we came before

         21  Community Board 8, while Margery was the Chair. And

         22  we believe that Ms. Perlmutter will be a tremendous

         23  asset to the Landmarks Preservation Commission and

         24  to its vital mission of safeguarding the City's

         25  architectural, historic and cultural heritage.
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          2                 Ms. Perlmutter is accomplished. She

          3  is intelligent, she is thoughtful, she is fairminded

          4  and she knows and loves New York. It would be to New

          5  York's benefit to have Ms. Perlmutter as a

          6  Commissioner, and you should vote for her to be one.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And you are in

          8  favor or in opposition because you did --

          9                 MS. ROTHSCHILD: I'm sorry, we are in

         10  favor. In very strong favor.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         12                 I'd like to call Nina Rappaport. Jody

         13  Sayler.

         14                 Ms. Rappaport.

         15                 MS. RAPPAPORT: Hello. My name is Nina

         16  Rappaport, and I am speaking in support of Margery

         17  Perlmutter's appointment to the Landmarks

         18  Preservation Commission.

         19                 I am an architectural historian,

         20  writer and preservation advocate. I have also known

         21  Margery for over 20 years. I will just speak to her

         22  qualifications.

         23                 On numerous occasions we have

         24  participated in discussions about the interface

         25  between contemporary architecture and historic
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          2  structures in New York's neighborhoods. She

          3  understands and really believes in the preservation

          4  of historic buildings and districts for their

          5  significance in the City from their architectural

          6  design, materiality, technical qualities and

          7  importance to New York City's cultural heritage.

          8                 At the same time she understands the

          9  need for continued improvement, restoration and

         10  urban diversity.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Rappaport, if

         12  you can wrap up.

         13                 MS. RAPPAPORT: Okay. She is

         14  perceptive. Quick to observe the essence of a

         15  project, has strong analytic ability and is

         16  persuasive, all of which are invaluable skills for a

         17  Landmarks Commissioner, and one who will uphold the

         18  Landmarks Law, which is the best in this country.

         19                 Thus, I urge you to support her

         20  appointment to the Commission.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And are you in

         22  favor or in opposition? You did not mark your slip.

         23                 MS. RAPPAPORT: Oh, sorry.

         24                 Yes, I am in favor.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.
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          2                 Ms. Sayler.

          3                 MS. SAYLER: My name is Jody Sayler. I

          4  have know Margery Perlmutter for 30 years. We were

          5  at Columbia School, Graduate School of Architecture

          6  and Planning.

          7                 Her qualifications have been well

          8  documented by others. My recommendation is more

          9  personal. Margery has a quality unmatched in any

         10  other person I've known. She has an unstoppable

         11  curiosity and it leaves her to constantly question,

         12  explore and grow into anything she pursues.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Sayler, if you

         14  can wrap up.

         15                 MS. SAYLER: As a friend and admirer

         16  of her life and work, I strongly recommend the

         17  extraordinarily talented person, Margery Perlmutter,

         18  for approval as member of the New York City

         19  Landmarks Commission.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

         22  much, Ms. Sayler.

         23                 Oh, Ms. Sayler, in favor or in

         24  opposition?

         25                 Thank you, in favor.
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          2                 I do not have a slip.

          3                 MS. MOSS SPATT: You have a slip. My

          4  name is Beverly Moss Spatt, I'm a former

          5  Commissioner, Chair of the Landmarks --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Spatt, who did

          7  you give the slip to?

          8                 MS. MOSS SPATT: I gave it to a

          9  gentleman in a mustache in the other room, and I

         10  filled it out so this honorable Council could hear

         11  my testimony. I left a sick bed, I was very ill,

         12  just to come here.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Spatt, have a

         14  seat.

         15                 MS. MOSS SPATT: Honorable members of

         16  the Landmarks, Public Siting, Maritime Use

         17  Committee, Honorable Chair --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: This is the Rules,

         19  Privileges and Elections Committee.

         20                 MS. MOSS SPATT: Excuse me?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: This is the Rules,

         22  Privileges and Elections.

         23                 MS. MOSS SPATT: All right, wrong

         24  speech. I e-mailed a Xerox. I'm sorry. I'll start

         25  all over again, but I'm sure you're still honorable.
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          2                 Chair of the Rules, Privilege and

          3  Election Committee, my name is Beverely Moss Spatt.

          4  I'm a former Chair of the New York City Landmark

          5  Preservation Commission, I'm a former member of the

          6  City Planning Commission, and I have taught

          7  preservation at Bernard College, many of my students

          8  are now leaders in the preservation field.

          9                 I am not here to discredit the

         10  proposed candidate for the Landmark Commission as a

         11  person, but the Mayor's Office shows a total lack of

         12  understanding of the mission of the Landmark

         13  Commission, which is preserving the legacy of the

         14  City, preserving the values of the neighborhoods,

         15  the neighborhoods you represent. The Commission is

         16  an advocate for preservation, while the proposed

         17  candidate's interest, experience and advocacy have

         18  been in development --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Spatt, if you

         20  can wrap up your testimony.

         21                 MS. MOSS SPATT: Excuse me?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If you can wrap up

         23  your testimony, please.

         24                 MS. MOSS SPATT: I will wrap it up.

         25  Albeit, in conflict of the character of your
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          2  neighborhoods, the Commission is not against

          3  development, but the development must be appropriate

          4  to your historic districts.

          5                 Work and previous votes of the

          6  proposed candidate clearly illustrate a total

          7  disregard and lack of respect for those districts,

          8  your districts.

          9                 When I was Chair of the Commission,

         10  the then Mayor, in consultation with me and my

         11  Commission, appointed only people with a great deal

         12  of expertise, credibility and a clear commitment to

         13  preservation, such as James Mosted Fish, founder and

         14  head of Columbia Preservation Program. But Conflicts

         15  of Interest Board, and I have dealt with the

         16  Conflict of Interest Board many, many times,

         17  suggested that the proposed candidate recuse herself

         18  on applications from her firm, which are many, is

         19  inconsistent and illogical.

         20                 Your honorable body and members are

         21  the representatives of your neighborhoods, and the

         22  keepers of their integrity and their continuity. I

         23  know as an independent Council --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Spatt --

         25                 MS. MOSS SPATT: -- You will not --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: -- Are you in

          3  favor or in opposition?

          4                 MS. MOSS SPATT: I expect the courtesy

          5  of one sentence.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I expect the

          7  courtesy that we have already extended to you to be

          8  returned.

          9                 MS. MOSS SPATT: I know as an

         10  independent Council you will not continue this

         11  travesty by approving the nomination --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Spatt --

         13                 MS. MOSS SPATT: -- And disregarding

         14  the present and future interests of your districts.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: -- Are you in

         16  favor or opposition?

         17                 MS. MOSS SPATT: Thank you very, very

         18  much for you attention and courtesy.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Can you please

         20  fill out a form so we can have it on record?

         21                 MS. MOSS SPATT: I did.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'm asking you,

         23  Ms. Spatt, if you can fill it out again. I would

         24  appreciate that.

         25                 MS. MOSS SPATT: Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

          3  Spatt.

          4                 I'd like to ask Ms. Margery

          5  Perlmutter to come back up, and Mr. Tierney, if you

          6  can just sit beside her? And I'd like to ask the

          7  cooperation of our fellow colleagues here, if you

          8  have any further questions to please begin raising

          9  your hands.

         10                 I'd like to just do a little bit of

         11  houskeeping here.

         12                 Ms. Perlmutter, if appointed to the

         13  Landmarks Commission, will you abide by the

         14  Conflicts of Interest Board's decision and recuse

         15  yourself from participating in any matters

         16  concerning your former architectural firm Arte New

         17  York?

         18                 And I understand you've mentioned

         19  this in your statement, but for the purposes of

         20  making certain you've answered the question

         21  appropriately?

         22                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, I will,

         23  absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: As you've noted,

         25  today you are an attorney employed by the lawfirm
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          2  Byran Cave -- Bryan Cave, I apologize. In your

          3  capacity at this firm you participated in all

          4  aspects of the firm's Land Use practice, which

          5  includes representing clients that have or may have

          6  matters before the Landmarks Preservation

          7  Commission. Further, it is my understanding that you

          8  have personally presented projects for review before

          9  the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         10                 Council staff has advised you that

         11  there are aspects of your current employment that

         12  may create potential conflict of interest upon your

         13  appointment to the Commission.  As a part-time

         14  public servant, the Conflicts of Interest Code

         15  prohibits you from:

         16                 (a) Holding a position with a firm

         17  engaged in business dealings with the agency you

         18  serve. In this case, the Landmarks Commission; and

         19                 (b) From representing private

         20  interests before the Landmarks Commission through

         21  direct or indirect appearances.

         22                 Therefore, have you obtained written

         23  approval from the head of the Landmarks Commission

         24  affirming that the holding of your position would

         25  not be in conflict with the purposes and interests
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          2  of the City?

          3                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, I have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: So, for the

          5  record, upon appointment for the Commission, will

          6  you seize working on any matters being handled by

          7  your employer that will potentially require action

          8  by or an appearance before the Landmarks Commission?

          9                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, I would.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Will you also

         11  recuse yourself from participating in all future

         12  matters in this area that your firm undertakes?

         13                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, I would.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Further, will you

         15  recuse yourself from consideration of such matters

         16  handled by your employer at the Commission itself?

         17                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Finally, perhaps

         19  not finally, will you abide by the Conflicts of

         20  Interest Board's decision concerning your employment

         21  with Bryan Cave?

         22                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, I would.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And Ms.

         24  Perlmutter, the issue of BSA being one of the

         25  agencies we have so duly heard here today by the
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          2  public in opposition of your appointment, being a

          3  conflict, I'd ask you, will you recuse yourself, as

          4  well, from appearing before any City agency dealing

          5  with a Land Use item that has come before you in the

          6  Landmarks Commission to be dealt with in other

          7  agencies?

          8                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I would abide by the

          9  recommendations and restricts of the Conflict of

         10  Interest Board, and if there are any issues like

         11  this that are unclear, I would seek their advice and

         12  abide by their requirements.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And I did ask if

         14  there was a representative of the Conflicts of

         15  Interest Board here today with us, and

         16  unfortunately, the person who was here today could

         17  not comment nor answer this question. So, therefore,

         18  I wanted to just go on the record and ask Ms.

         19  Perlmutter herself.

         20                 I'd like to just ask my colleagues

         21  now?

         22                 Council Member Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, I just

         24  have one, Ms. Perlmutter, and I was hoping for a

         25  clearer answer to the last question that the
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          2  Chairperson asked you, and maybe I misunderstood the

          3  question. I mean, because you kind of punted the

          4  answer a little bit.

          5                 If a matter comes before you as a

          6  Commissioner of a Landmarks Preservation Commission,

          7  are you saying that you feel it is acceptable for

          8  you to then represent a client in that matter before

          9  BSA?

         10                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I'm not sure if I'm

         11  even making the connection how I would do that. The

         12  Landmarks Commission reviews the certificate of

         13  appropriateness applications, and that's not

         14  reviewed by BSA.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Oh, it would

         16  come up if an item was, you know, required a

         17  variance, or some zoning, could be BSA, could be

         18  City Planning, at another Land Use-related agency.

         19  You know, because the landmarks determination is not

         20  really independent. You know, they often run

         21  together. Would you represent a client of Bryan Cave

         22  at another agency like City Planning, or BSA, if you

         23  were also being called upon to adjudicate as a

         24  Commissioner of Landmarks Preservation, something

         25  related to that Land Use matter?
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          2                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I would have to say

          3  again, for a specific issue I'd have to ask the

          4  Conflict of Interest Board how they would like me to

          5  proceed on that.

          6                 Because what I've been told so far by

          7  the Conflict of Interest Board is that I must recuse

          8  myself from all matters that will come before the

          9  Commission, Landmarks Commission, and that I cannot

         10  work on any matters that will come before the

         11  Commission, and that's my understanding at this

         12  time.

         13                 And if there's additional

         14  clarification that's necessary, I would have to

         15  defer to the Conflicts of Interest Board. They're

         16  the experts on this subject and I don't pretend to

         17  be.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You know, I'm

         19  not even asking you what the technical answer from

         20  the Conflicts of Interest Board is. I'm just a

         21  little concerned that, you know, the issue is not

         22  clearer to you, that that would be improper. That,

         23  you know, you're representing the XYZ Development

         24  Corporation before BSA, and on the same application

         25  they need to come for landmarks for something, you
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          2  think you can represent XYZ Corp at City Planning or

          3  BSA, and you need to ask Conflicts of Interest Board

          4  whether you can do that?

          5                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Sorry, maybe I should

          6  explain the process. There's never the same

          7  application before the Landmarks Commission, as

          8  before the BSA. They're totally independent

          9  agencies.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But I

         11  understand that. I understand that. You know, what

         12  I'm trying to say to you is --

         13                 MS. PERLMUTTER: And totally

         14  independent application.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:-- You're

         16  telling me that a particular piece of land that's up

         17  for development is never before Landmarks at one

         18  point and BSA or City Planning at another? You know,

         19  it's part of the same general development project?

         20  That never happens?

         21                 MS. PERLMUTTER: It's never happened

         22  in my experience, and it's a very general question

         23  and I really can't respond so specifically to such a

         24  general hypothetical.

         25                 Again, I really do rely on the
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          2  experts to tell me what my limitations are, and I'd

          3  have to stand by that. That's why we have a rather

          4  detailed letter that's dealing with a lot of issues.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Then I'm

          6  operating on a very general hypothetical, and I'm

          7  asking for your moral compass here, Ms. Perlmutter.

          8                 If a client of Bryan Cave's was

          9  dealing with a property at 123A Street, and in

         10  connection with that development plan, they had to

         11  come before the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         12  and City Planning or BSA, do you think it's

         13  appropriate for you to represent that corporation on

         14  that site at City Planning or BSA?

         15                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I will not.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You will not?

         17                 MS. PERLMUTTER: No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         19  Katz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just to tag on,

         21  I thought I heard you say that you would be recused

         22  from working on any matter in Bryan Cove --

         23                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Cave.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Cave. Sorry.

         25  You'd be recused from working on any matter that
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          2  Bryan Cave was doing at the BSA, if Landmarks was

          3  going to vote on the same matter? I heard you say

          4  that.

          5                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes. I mean, again,

          6  I'm being asked to respond to something that's so

          7  hypothetical and odd that I'm kind of betwixt about

          8  how to respond, yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, I'm trying

         10  to give you the opportunity to gather your thoughts.

         11  Because I thought you said that, which I think

         12  answers, but I'm not sure, I don't want to put words

         13  in his mouth, Councilman Fidler's questions. I'm

         14  trying to find that out. I thought that's what you

         15  said. If it's not what you said, then you need to

         16  correct me.

         17                 MS. PERLMUTTER: What I said is that I

         18  would like to be able to rely on the experts on the

         19  issues of conflict, that if it seems like it's a

         20  conflict, in a hypothetical situation I don't know

         21  whether it's a conflict, and if it seems like it is

         22  one, I will not participate.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         24  Garodnick?

         25                 Are there any other questions?
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          2                 Council Member Felder, and McMahon.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I just wanted

          4  to mention as the past Chair of the Landmarks and

          5  the Public Siting Committee, that the definition, or

          6  I should say the responsibility I think of the

          7  Commissioner is to uphold the Landmark Law, period.

          8                 The advocates think that the

          9  Commissioner should do one thing. The developers

         10  think they should do something else, and I may think

         11  they should do something else entirely, but I think,

         12  and I think that's the bottom line, the bottom line

         13  is that the people who are being appointed have to

         14  uphold the law, and we hope that they have the

         15  ability to do so.

         16                 And when I way ability, I'm not

         17  talking about whether they're lawyers or architects

         18  or anything else. The bottom line will again be

         19  whether we know that this person is someone we can

         20  trust, someone has the integrity, someone has the

         21  responsibility and as Council Member Fidler said,

         22  the morals and the ethics, to be able to uphold the

         23  law.

         24                 And, yes, common sense is important.

         25  So, the rest of it, the testimony, it's important to

                                                            169

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  hear all the testimony, but at the end of the day,

          3  at the end of the day I just want to ask my

          4  colleagues who are on the Committee to please make

          5  sure that when you vote, and I think that based on

          6  the information that was given, the history, I don't

          7  know Margery Perlmutter, and I don't want to ever

          8  have to know Margery Perlmutter, I don't have

          9  anything against you, but it seems that she's

         10  qualified to do the job.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         13  McMahon.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I don't want

         15  to beat a dead horse, but I just want to make sure

         16  that I'm clear in my mind, too, because I think it

         17  is, but I just want to follow-up a little bit about

         18  what Lew was saying. Let's suppose, I mean, there's

         19  an application for a site, let's suppose a company

         20  wants to build a race track on Staten Island, for

         21  instance, MASCAR, just a hypothetical, just a

         22  hypothetical, we'll call them MASCAR, and MASCAR has

         23  a piece of property that has a building that's

         24  landmarked. And they want to make some changes in

         25  there, and they have to become before the Landmarks
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          2  Commission, and around that building they want to

          3  build a race track and that needs a special permit

          4  from City Planning, okay.

          5                 Now, you'll agree on that

          6  circumstance it's one project that has elements both

          7  to Landmarks Preservation Commission and to City

          8  Planning. Is that a fair assumption on my part,

          9  given your expertise?

         10                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, and no, because

         11  of how the application process actually works.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I understand

         13  that there's one application that goes to City

         14  Planning and there's on application goes to

         15  Landmarks.

         16                 MS. PERLMUTTER: One application

         17  considers Land Use issues, you know, how it's used,

         18  how big it is and so on, and other involves

         19  Landmarks issues, whether the structure is

         20  appropriate to the historic district.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Sure. But I

         22  think maybe you're splitting hairs a little bit,

         23  because my question was that, is that one project

         24  that has elements both to the landmarks and the City

         25  Planning, would you agree?
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          2                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, it is.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And in that

          4  circumstance, if MASCAR was your client, would you

          5  recuse yourself from the element that went to City

          6  Planning regarding the special permit?

          7                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, I would.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. And I

          9  think that that's very important for all of us,

         10  because we understand, it is my understanding --

         11  now, I understand that you may say, well MASCAR may

         12  decide that they want to build their race car track

         13  in Queens next to Kennedy airport, and there the

         14  site has no landmarks issues, it just has a land use

         15  issue. Now, that circumstance, you would not see a

         16  conflict representing MASCAR to City Planning; is

         17  that correct?

         18                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But in the

         20  first example, as long as there's a landmarks

         21  element to the project you understand that that is

         22  certainly either a conflict or an appearance of

         23  impropriety that would make it, preclude you from

         24  dealing with that project?

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. Thank

          3  you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Rivera.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Yes, thank you

          6  very much, Madam Chair. And thank you very much, Ms.

          7  Perlmutter.

          8                 I just wanted to congratulate you on

          9  being able to survive this amount of time here, in

         10  the Chambers and the Committee Room.

         11                 I've been looking through your record

         12  book here, and I fingered through the details on the

         13  investigation and the investigative findings and

         14  issues, and what I see here is that there is nothing

         15  in your previous performance that says that you

         16  would do anything to break the law or do anything

         17  that would be in question, in terms of the law. So,

         18  I just want to commend you on that.

         19                 I'm a strong believer that past

         20  experience, you know, will give you perspective on

         21  what can possibly happen in the future, and I want

         22  to thank you for being upfront and stating that you

         23  will obviously reach out to the Conflicts of

         24  Interest Board and work with them to make sure that,

         25  you know, anything that can possibly, even skirt on

                                                            173

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  the gray side will be part of your -- you will be

          3  aware of.

          4                 My question is, based on that, you're

          5  not planning on changing your ways, obviously?

          6                 MS. PERLMUTTER: No, sir.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Okay. So, that

          8  is my question. I just want to state that, you know,

          9  when we look at candidates, we always have to look

         10  at different aspects, and one of the aspects has to

         11  ultimately be their past experiences, and obviously

         12  we have a candidate before us that committed several

         13  infractions in the past, and obviously that will be

         14  taken into consideration. But on the reverse side,

         15  if someone has actually had, you know, a superb

         16  record, then that has to be taken into

         17  consideration.

         18                 I want to just say that I will be

         19  voting in support of your nomination because of your

         20  record and because you come highly recommended.

         21                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         23  Dickens.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair. And thank you, Ms. Perlmutter, for
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          2  being here all of these hours and hearing both sides

          3  of the testimony. I know it must be very difficult.

          4                 The resume is beyond reproach. But I

          5  just want to piggy-back on my colleague, Council

          6  Member McMahon, and Fidler, because I want to be

          7  sure I heard correct, and that is that if you have a

          8  client that has an application before City Planning

          9  or BSA, but also that same client on the same

         10  development has an application for the Certificate

         11  of Appropriateness before Landmark Commission, that

         12  you would not represent that client at City

         13  Planning?

         14                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: I wanted to

         16  be sure I heard that.

         17                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes, that's correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: All right.

         19  Thank you so much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         21  Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I wasn't here

         23  earlier, and I'm not on this Committee, but my

         24  question is this: Obviously, as Chair of Landmarks

         25  on Board 8 you've worked with some of the very pro
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          2  landmark preservation individuals, how would you do

          3  so as a member of LPC, if confirmed?

          4                 MS. PERLMUTTER: How would I work with

          5  them? Is that your question?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes.

          7                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Actually, I'm only

          8  one of 11 commissioners, the Chair is sitting next

          9  to me, Mr. Tierney.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: We know him

         11  well.

         12                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Actually, I would be

         13  following the instructions of the Chair and I don't

         14  know actually how that's done, having not served on

         15  the Commission yet.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Didn't you do

         17  so as a member of Board 8?

         18                 With all due respect, you know, I

         19  like Bob Tierney, but I do what I want to do, and

         20  what I think is correct.

         21                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So what would

         23  you do? Forget Bob Tierney, what would you do as an

         24  individual representing obviously people who are

         25  professional in their field. How would you go about
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          2  working with some of the people who feel very

          3  strongly about this issue?

          4                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I would listen to

          5  what their concerns are, weigh in, and implement or

          6  consider their concerns in terms of the review of

          7  the application; if I understand the question

          8  correctly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And you did

         10  the same on Board 8?

         11                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Definitely did the

         12  same on Board 8. I heard all sides of the issue, and

         13  helped the Committee understand and interpret those

         14  sides, and tried to come up with a decision about

         15  whether or not the application was appropriate,

         16  based on all the information that was provided to us

         17  by all sides.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         21  Member Brewer.

         22                 Ms. Perlmutter, I'd like to thank you

         23  for allowing us -- oh, one second. Council Member

         24  Fidler.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I
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          2  apologize, I know the hour is late. This is very

          3  difficult for me and I need to follow-up on the

          4  MASCAR question, because I want to understand it

          5  because, you know, maybe MASCAR wants to come to

          6  Floyd Bennett Field, and that would really stink.

          7                 So, I don't want to know what the

          8  Conflict of Interest Board thinks, I want to know

          9  what you think.

         10                 Bryan Cave has a client in this

         11  example, they are going to have an application

         12  unrelated. They're going to have an application

         13  before Landmarks Preservation, but unrelated to

         14  that, on another development site, they have an

         15  application before City Planning.

         16                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Mm-hmm.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Do you feel

         18  that it is appropriate for you to represent them

         19  before City Planning?

         20                 MS. PERLMUTTER: We're talking about a

         21  completely separate location?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Separate

         23  locations.

         24                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Unrelated. No

         25  landmarks issues.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Separate

          3  location, same client.

          4                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Same client, no

          5  landmark issues, right?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No landmark

          7  issues on that application, correct.

          8                 MS. PERLMUTTER: So then yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. If they

         10  come to the Commission, you will do what?

         11                 MS. PERLMUTTER: If they come to the

         12  Commission for their landmarks application, I would

         13  recuse myself from considering, discussing, voting

         14  on that item.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. And just

         16  last question. There's a Land Use Division at Bryan

         17  Cave; is that correct?

         18                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: How many

         20  attorneys are in that?

         21                 MS. PERLMUTTER: About six.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: How many are

         23  partners?

         24                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Two.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You're one of
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          2  them?

          3                 MS. PERLMUTTER: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes?

          5                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I'm not a partner.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You're not a

          7  partner?

          8                 MS. PERLMUTTER: No. I should be.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I thought I

         10  read that you were a partner for Bryan Cave. Okay.

         11  Okay, thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: For the

         13  record, the report we have indicates you're a

         14  partner. I want to clarify that. It's in the

         15  information we got. How do we know everything else

         16  is right?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I apologize. Ms.

         18  Perlmutter, on page four of our report, you do not

         19  have it in front of you, but under employment it

         20  reads, "A partner in the firm of Bryan Cave, LLP,

         21  confirmed that Ms. Perlmutter's employment as an

         22  associate commenced on September 13, 1999.

         23                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Mm-hmm, that's

         24  correct. The partner confirmed, but I'm an

         25  associate.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Oh, okay.

          3                 MS. PERLMUTTER: But you could send a

          4  letter to the boss, that would be helpful.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Equity amongst the

          6  gender race.

          7                 Thank you, Council Member Weprin, for

          8  the clarification.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you for

         10  the clarification.

         11                 Council Member Gerson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 I just have one question to follow

         15  up, which I feel compelled to, even though I'm not a

         16  member of this Committee, I thank the Chair's and

         17  the Committee's indulgence. I do represent one of

         18  the more heavily landmarked districts where a part

         19  of the district is actually living through this

         20  overlapping scenarios between zoning and

         21  landmarking, which my colleagues have been asking

         22  about hypothetically, and I'm sure the Chair knows

         23  exactly what I'm talking about.

         24                 But in part of the NoHo community,

         25  the community has actually been told that it's
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          2  landmarking application to extend the historic

          3  district is linked or it will be influenced, or is

          4  intertwined with a rezoning process for the same

          5  community that is in the works. And it's a whole

          6  complicated history, which I'm not going to get into

          7  now in the interest of time. But if you are on the

          8  Landmarks Commission, and knowing that there is this

          9  type of overlapping intertwined prospect, would you

         10  refrain from representing any client in a zoning BSA

         11  City Planning Commission context that is part, that

         12  lies within the area, the same area that is in

         13  question or has an application pending before the

         14  Landmarks Commission?

         15                 And this is not a hypothetical. This

         16  is a real live scenario that is existing, much to my

         17  regret and chagrin as we speak. So, this is not a

         18  hypothetical.

         19                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Unfortunately, I

         20  don't know the specifics of the thing that you're

         21  talking about. If you wanted to give me a specific,

         22  I could respond to it. That's why I did better with

         23  the MASCAR.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So the

         25  specific is this: If a property owner within the
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          2  area that has an application pending before the

          3  Landmarks Commission to be included within an

          4  expanded historic district, a property owner, a

          5  owner of property within that area comes to you and

          6  says will you represent me before the BSA on a

          7  variance issue, knowing that that piece of the

          8  property is within the district for which there is

          9  an active Landmarks application pending, would you

         10  then refrain from representing that property owner?

         11                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Yes. If it's

         12  something where I'm aware that there is -- it's

         13  sitting within a historic district, a potential

         14  historic district any moment now, obviously that

         15  would be something that after approved by the BSA

         16  for argument's sake, would come to the Commission.

         17  So those are linked applications.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So the answer

         19  is yes, you would not represent such a client?

         20                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         23  Member Gerson.

         24                 Council Member Comrie.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes, I'm just
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          2  -- I was just double-checking before I asked the

          3  question because it seemed to me that earlier it was

          4  established that you have not actively lobbied for

          5  your firm, but you're just listed because your firm

          6  is listed as a lobbying firm, but the percentage of

          7  your work that you've done as actively lobbying is

          8  what? Ten percent, if that?

          9                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I should clarify what

         10  we register for lobbying. I know that you're working

         11  on this issue shortly. Lobbying is any appearance

         12  before a collection of City agencies, such as a

         13  community board, the Borough President's Office,

         14  your Council, the City Planning Commission, and on

         15  behalf of a client who wants to make a change in

         16  Land Use.

         17                 So, absolutely everything that we do

         18  in the office where we are going to go to one of

         19  those agencies to request a modification in a

         20  building or the use of land must be registered with

         21  the lobbying commission or the City Clerk.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. But how

         23  much of the percentage of your work are you doing

         24  for the firm?

         25                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Any time that I
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          2  appear before a community board, I have to register

          3  as a lobbyist.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          5                 MS. PERLMUTTER: So, the percentage,

          6  not 100 percent of my work is things where I appear

          7  before an agency or a community board, but it's a

          8  significant percentage.

          9                 I spent a lot of time also doing

         10  transactional work, meeting at the Buildings

         11  Department. I mean, there's things that are not

         12  lobbying activities.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is it more

         14  than 50 percent of your time or less?

         15                 MS. PERLMUTTER: I'd say it's 50

         16  percent.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         18                 MS. PERLMUTTER: You don't really

         19  measure it that way because you're not really

         20  sitting in front of an agency all day long.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It seemed to

         22  me earlier that the majority of the percentage of

         23  your time you were not doing that type of work for

         24  Bryan Cave, and I was actually just going to say

         25  that I was impressed with the fact that you wanted
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          2  to serve at City Planning and actually cut into your

          3  amount of hours, amount of billable hours -- why is

          4  this mike drifting in and out? There's something

          5  wrong with the mike.

          6                 I was impressed that you were going

          7  to cut the amount of billable hours to serve in a

          8  capacity on Landmarks Preservation Commission. I was

          9  going to applaud you for that, and I think that from

         10  your application you're eminently qualified. I'm

         11  personally chagrinned that we're losing a Queens

         12  slot, and I want to put that on the record, that

         13  we're losing a Queens slot, and hope that the

         14  Mayor's Office will grant us the next three slots

         15  that are available for Queens.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: You've got to

         17  share with the Bronx.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes. Clearly

         19  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: I only asked

         21  for one.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Could we have some

         23  order?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But I think

         25  that you're eminently qualified, and I just wanted
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          2  to put on record that I'm impressed that you're even

          3  wanting to do this and give up billable hours. You

          4  know, I think that that just shows a sign that you

          5  care about this City and you want the City to

          6  progress in a positive manner, dealing with the fact

          7  that we have to continue to evolve as a City.

          8                 So, thank you.

          9                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

         11                 My colleagues, this is the end, and I

         12  will ask you with no grunts to please -- this is the

         13  time where I'm going to allow statements before our

         14  vote, but before we vote, we have to recess, and

         15  only for five minutes.

         16                 And, so, I ask you, I know that

         17  Council Member Katz and Council Member Garodnick

         18  would like to make statements before we vote, so if

         19  there is anyone else, please let us know, and if you

         20  do not have, I will be pleased if you don't have any

         21  further statements. Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Madam Chair,

         23  with all due respect, it's difficult to make a

         24  statement without knowing the motion. You know what

         25  I mean?
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          2                 Like, I'd like to make a statement on

          3  the motion, whatever that is.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: You want to

          5  explain your vote, you mean?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, I don't want

          7  to explain my vote. I would like to make a statement

          8  on the record with regard to the motion.

          9                 So, I'm very clear on what I want.

         10  So, my question becomes how ever you want -- it's

         11  hard to make a statement without knowing the motion,

         12  so how do you want to do it?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I will recess now.

         14  Thank you. For five minutes. And if you can just

         15  indulge upon myself, I just have to step out for a

         16  second. Thank you.

         17                 (Recess taken.)

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: It just so happens

         19  that this could possibly the longest hearing in

         20  Rules ever. It has been a pleasure. And I must say,

         21  as government officials, in trying to balance the

         22  needs of the City, it is never easy, and with

         23  integrity first, this was clearly an indication and

         24  a testament as to how serious we were considering

         25  the application before us for Ms. Margery
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          2  Perlmutter.

          3                 I'd like to thank Ms. Perlmutter, and

          4  to all the witnesses who had testified today. I

          5  understand that you gave up of your day, as well as

          6  time, to be able to be here with us.

          7                 We appreciate the many issues that

          8  the witnesses have raised, and Ms. Perlmutter's

          9  willingness to answer our many questions.

         10                 The public has raised a number of

         11  concerns about Ms. Perlmutter's ability to serve as

         12  a fair and impartial member of the Landmarks

         13  Preservation Commission if appointed.

         14                 Today we questioned Ms. Perlmutter

         15  extensively on questions about her views on

         16  Landmarks preservation, and whether her law

         17  practice, her architectural practice and her service

         18  on the community board would make it difficult for

         19  Ms. Perlmutter to carry out her responsibilities on

         20  the Commission.

         21                 Without a doubt she has explained to

         22  us that she will immediately resign from the

         23  Community Board No. 8 in Manhattan. She has also,

         24  after extensive interaction with members on this

         25  Committee, assured us that she would recuse herself
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          2  from any and all matters that would relate to her

          3  service on the community board, some matters related

          4  to her law firm, and to all matters that relate to

          5  her husband's architectural firm.

          6                 She has written to the Conflict of

          7  Interest Board and the Board has granted her a

          8  waiver to serve on the Landmarks Preservation

          9  Commission.

         10                 Ms. Perlmutter, without a doubt, as

         11  her credentials have stated, is an accomplished

         12  architect and an attorney. We believe she is highly

         13  qualified, and her qualifications, as I've heard

         14  from favorable and opposing witnesses, is highly

         15  qualified, by technical experience, to serve on the

         16  Landmark Preservation Commission. There were

         17  questions concerning her conflicts of interest.

         18  There were questions concerning whether or not she

         19  would be able to uphold her integrity in drawing

         20  decisions that would affect landmarking in the City

         21  of New York, and now allowing her employer to lead

         22  her individuality in decision-making.

         23                 Therefore, because she has assured us

         24  that she will abide by all Conflict of Interest

         25  Rules, and seek advice from Conflicts of Interest
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          2  Board when necessary, and we will enforce, it is our

          3  duty as Council members and in this body to ensure

          4  that the Conflict of Interest Board is doing their

          5  part in advising and holding accountable what Ms.

          6  Perlmutter has already sworn into the record. I am

          7  prepared to support her appointment.

          8                 However, I would like to note some

          9  serious issues that have been raised here today we

         10  expect to see resolved promptly. And I look at you,

         11  Mr. Tierney, for the sake of having you accountable.

         12                 First, Ms. Perlmutter is taking the

         13  seat for a member of the Commission who was

         14  originally from Queens, and you have stated that the

         15  appointment had moved to Manhattan and therefore no

         16  longer qualified as a Queens member, but we expect

         17  to see the Queens representative appointed quickly.

         18                 Second, we need to deal with the

         19  holdovers to the Commission. The Chair has stated

         20  for the record today that he will review a list of

         21  candidates to replace the hold-overs, members of the

         22  Commission, and I will work with you and hold you

         23  accountable to this.

         24                 I'd like to thank my colleagues for

         25  taking the time and not rushing me through this
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          2  hearing, for sitting here and trying to do your part

          3  as elected officials, to diligently deliberate on

          4  this decision.

          5                 And, so, I'd like to pass the mike to

          6  our Speaker who has joined us. Speaker Quinn.

          7                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you. And I want

          8  to thank everyone for participating in the hearing.

          9  And short of I think maybe the smoking or SWMP

         10  hearings, this could be one of the longest hearings

         11  on one matter that we've had, but I want to thank

         12  everyone for their attention.

         13                 You know, obviously it is a good

         14  thing that there is so much interest in the

         15  qualifications and ethics of the members of our

         16  Landmarks Preservation Commission, and I think it is

         17  appropriate that there is this much interest because

         18  the job of the Landmarks Preservation Commission is

         19  a very, very important job.

         20                 And I just want to reiterate some of

         21  the sentiments of our Chair as we move forward on

         22  the matter of Ms. Perlmutter's appointment.

         23                 First, I want to reiterate the

         24  importance of Chairperson Tierney, and I know he

         25  will do this, following up on the issues raised on
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          2  borough representation.

          3                 It is very important, particularly

          4  given the dialogue over the past four and a half

          5  years in this body about diversifying where

          6  individual landmarks and landmark districts exist in

          7  this City, and a push to make sure there are more

          8  outside of Manhattan and more in neighborhoods where

          9  there is a majority of people of color. It is very

         10  important that we have representatives from all of

         11  the boroughs, and that we have active members and

         12  not hold-over members. We will anxiously await

         13  hearing back from you on that matter and moving

         14  forward.

         15                 You know, there was a lot of

         16  discussion about the decisions Ms. Perlmutter might

         17  make, her behavior, when she may or may not have to

         18  recuse herself from matters or make disclaimers

         19  about her professional involvement. You know, one of

         20  the things about the Landmarks Preservation

         21  Commission is you want to have people on LPC who

         22  have knowledge in the matters before them, who have

         23  knowledge of architecture, who have knowledge of

         24  Landmarks Law and Housing and Zoning Law. So, to

         25  have people who are active in those fields and
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          2  interacting in government with those issues is a

          3  reality as it relates to the candidates who we may

          4  look to put on the Landmarks Preservation

          5  Commission.

          6                 So, dealing with that reality in

          7  members of the LPC, and other boards as well, is not

          8  a new challenge for us in City government. But I

          9  think it is important that we seek to balance the

         10  Board with some folks who may be out of present

         11  practice with folks who are presently in practice. I

         12  think it brings life to the Board and it gives a

         13  real time reality to the Board, as well.

         14                 But, of course, that has to be

         15  tempered and balanced with a representative

         16  recognition of when they need to recuse themselves,

         17  the recognition of when they need to step away from

         18  the matter, or their recognition that they do not

         19  know whether this is a moment that they need to step

         20  away or recuse themselves and they therefore need to

         21  seek guidance from the Conflict of Interest Board or

         22  other appropriate government entities.

         23                 And I am very confident, based on the

         24  testimony that occurred here earlier, the reports I

         25  got from the hearing, other conversations I have had

                                                            194

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  that Ms. Perlmutter will meet those requirements,

          3  that she will know when to recuse herself, or

          4  perhaps the most important thing in government or

          5  any job, know when she doesn't know, and will seek

          6  guidance, and that based on the commitment she has

          7  made on the record and her past performance as a

          8  professional in this field, we, if we appoint her,

          9  which I hope we will do today, will have a new

         10  member of the Landmarks Preservation Commission who

         11  brings us a long-time knowledge, a professional

         12  record, and an active involvement in the field of

         13  real time, but also the ethical sense to know when

         14  she needs to step away or seek guidance.

         15                 So, I want to thank my colleagues for

         16  giving this matter so much attention. It was long

         17  but the Landmarks Preservation Commission is that

         18  important to us in our City, particularly to Staten

         19  Island, Mike, and I want to thank the Chair for

         20  giving this so much attention and thought, and I

         21  know this is an issue which Chairperson Reyna has

         22  given a great deal of thought, not just today, but

         23  in the weeks leading up to this, and I hope my

         24  colleagues will be able to vote in support of Ms.

         25  Perlmutter's appointment to the Landmarks
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          2  Preservation Commission.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'd like to just

          4  do roll call for a vote, and immediately after,

          5  please, to my colleagues, do not leave because we

          6  have to have a roll call for lobbying reform, as

          7  well as rules.

          8                 We have two members of the Committee

          9  who wanted to make statements before the vote. I'd

         10  like to move quickly, and then open up that.

         11                 So, the two statements. Council

         12  Member Katz. Do it now because when we do roll call,

         13  we're going to ask each member to call out their

         14  vote on all three matters. We're going to do all one

         15  vote now.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, instead of

         17  explaining our vote.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, let me

         20  thank the applicant and the Chair for the job that

         21  she did today. I guess the Speaker really talked a

         22  lot about the issues I wanted to cover. I think just

         23  very, very briefly, quickly, I want to just note for

         24  the record that today really hasn't been, as far as

         25  I can see, except for a few folks, a substantive
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          2  issue. This truly has been a Conflicts of Interest

          3  issue.

          4                 I am confident that this applicant

          5  will know when to go to the Conflicts of Interest

          6  Board. I go to the Conflicts of Interest Board any

          7  time that I have a question as to whether or not

          8  something is the right thing or the wrong thing to

          9  do, and I think at the very least, we have to have

         10  some confidence in our commissioners that they will

         11  also make those judgment calls.

         12                 I also want to just point out one

         13  thing. I mean, with all the folks that we deal with

         14  at the City Planning Commission or confirm at the

         15  City Planning Commission or the Landmarks

         16  Commission, I think one of the things that was said

         17  today on the record, which I think was very smart,

         18  which I think it was Rick from the AIA said, you

         19  know, if we look at all of the conflict problems,

         20  you're never going to have anybody in the industry

         21  who can serve on any of these commissions, and it

         22  may be that as a body we decide, well, maybe we just

         23  want, you know, all academia, or all folks that have

         24  not had the practice, or don't have a practice in

         25  the industry, but I don't really believe that that's
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          2  the best thing for the City of New York.

          3                 I do think we need people serving on

          4  these commissions that actually know the business

          5  practice in the business somewhat. Clearly when

          6  there is no conflict. But I don't think experience

          7  is a bad thing.

          8                 So, just I wanted to put those sort

          9  of thoughts on the record. I guess the final issue I

         10  would say is that, I guess I was somewhat

         11  disappointed in some of the statements made today by

         12  some of the folks who testified. I guess I'd be

         13  remiss if I said, you know, saying that everybody

         14  thinks that all politicians are crooks, that, you

         15  know, people that were talking a long time over the

         16  Chair's objections and things of that nature, and I

         17  do think that we do need to keep some semblance of

         18  professionalism in this body, and if there's one

         19  thing that this Council, and Madam Chair, you today

         20  have shown, is that we are a body that prides itself

         21  on the professionalism and the openness to the

         22  public. That is our job, that is what we do, and I

         23  think we did it well today.

         24                 So, I will be voting yes, and I just

         25  wanted the chance to comment today.
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          2                 The final thing, Queens is going to

          3  watch out for the next Landmarks Commissioner

          4  appointment. I know the Mayor's people are in the

          5  House. Just so you know, we will be watching that

          6  very, very closely.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          9  member.

         10                 Council Member Garodnick.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         12  very much, Madam Chair.

         13                 Thank you, Ms. Perlmutter,

         14  Commissioner Tierney, everybody who is here today,

         15  for your patience and participation in this.

         16                 I just wanted to make this comment

         17  because there are people who I respect on both sides

         18  of this issue today and it is clear that even in the

         19  community board which represents the heart of my

         20  Council district, that there are people on both

         21  sides of this issue and are very divided on the

         22  subject.

         23                 So, I want you to know that I

         24  listened very carefully today to all of those views

         25  and thought about the way to formulate my vote, and

                                                            199

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  I came up with the following:

          3                 First, there were absolutely no

          4  questions here about the applicant's qualifications

          5  for this position. Universally, uniformly, everybody

          6  said that this applicant was supremely qualified to

          7  be on the Landmarks Commission, and if you separate

          8  that out from the issues which were raised about

          9  conflicts, it was very, very, very favorable, and

         10  very impressive. And I, of course, was impressed,

         11  too, because I reappointed you to Community Board 8,

         12  a couple of months ago.

         13                 There were two concerns that were

         14  raised. First was the preservationist leanings of

         15  the applicant. Some said that they wished the

         16  applicant was a little more of a preservationist.

         17  But the group that did the most comprehensive study

         18  of this issue, Municipal Art Society, which looked

         19  at every single vote that this applicant took, while

         20  as Chair and a member of the Landmarks Committee of

         21  Community Board 8, concluded that she was within the

         22  mainstream in their view of the preservationist

         23  community, and that is good enough for me.

         24                 On the issue of conflicts. I agree

         25  with the Speaker and what Chair Katz said, that
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          2  nobody with knowledge of these issues is without

          3  conflicts. I'm somebody who comes from a similar

          4  large law firm and have seen the way that firms of

          5  that nature deal with conflicts. It is sometimes

          6  complicated, but it is an ethical responsibility of

          7  the profession, not to mention the fact that there

          8  are additional requirements here as a public

          9  governmental official. The Conflicts of Interest

         10  Board has clearly set the rules here.

         11                 I listened very carefully to see if

         12  anybody would give any example of a situation in

         13  which this applicant should have recused herself

         14  while serving on the Committee or as Chair of the

         15  Committee, as a result of something that came before

         16  the Landmarks Committee from her firm, nobody gave

         17  any example of that.

         18                 So, I am going to vote yes. I'm

         19  voting aye on this application. I think that she

         20  will be a strong addition to the Commission.

         21                 And we're counting on you, Ms.

         22  Perlmutter, to go to the Conflicts of Interest Board

         23  any moment that there is even a hint of a question.

         24  We know that you will, you must. And so, with that,

         25  you have my vote today.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          3  Member Garodnick.

          4                 I'd like to ask Billy to call the

          5  roll.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: M-117, two

          7  preconsidered resolutions.

          8                 Council Member Reyna.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'd like to just

         10  mention the first vote is Perlmutter as an

         11  appointment to the Landmarks Commission; number two,

         12  lobbying rules; and number three, the change of

         13  Committee assignments.

         14                 I vote aye for all.

         15                 Yes, it's a coupled vote.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye on

         18  all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all

          3  items.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Madam

          6  Chairwoman, if I could be briefly excused to explain

          7  my vote?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes, sir.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

         10                 I have to tell you, this is a tough

         11  one. I am one who believes that the Mayor has a

         12  right to make his appointments, so long as the

         13  person is legally, technically qualified, and as

         14  long as there is no ethical issue involved with the

         15  application. And certainly, as everyone here has

         16  said today, there is certainly no issue as to the

         17  legally qualified.

         18                 I was very, very troubled by our last

         19  question and answer, Ms. Perlmutter, and I'm going

         20  to allow for the fact that after sitting here and

         21  being beaten up for four hours, that maybe it didn't

         22  come to you as crystally clear as it came to all of

         23  us, how inappropriate it would be for you on a

         24  related matter to appear for the same client in a

         25  different agency. To me that was a no-brainer and
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          2  should never -- you shouldn't have to ask the

          3  Conflict of Interest Board whether that's right or

          4  wrong.

          5                 I'm going to allow for the difficulty

          6  of the day, and defer to not only the Mayor's

          7  prerogatives but the support that you have from

          8  Chairwoman Reyna and Speaker Quinn, and suggest

          9  simply that, given your hesitance to answer a

         10  question that has such a clear moral imperative to

         11  me, that you be extraordinarily circumspect in your

         12  performance as a member of the Landmarks

         13  Preservation Commission, and should there be even a

         14  whisper of a doubt in your mind, that maybe you do

         15  need to ask the Conflicts of Interest Board what's

         16  right or wrong.

         17                 I hope that won't be necessary. And

         18  so having said that and with deference to the

         19  individuals I just mentioned and with the hope that

         20  your performance on the Commission is impeccable,

         21  both technically and morally, I'm going to vote aye.

         22                 I also want to add, not because I

         23  need to stick up for Queens, but I have long felt

         24  that this Commission has been Manhattancentric in

         25  its view of this City. I find it distressing that as
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          2  we change the shift, someone from Queens is coming

          3  off and yet another person from Manhattan is coming

          4  on. I know we have difficulty in Brooklyn getting

          5  what I consider to be full and adequate attention to

          6  sites that we consider to be historically important.

          7  Just because they're not in Manhattan doesn't mean

          8  they're not historically important.

          9                 I know I've raised this issue with

         10  Chairman Tierney and I'm raising it again because

         11  he's here and I know he hears. And so I hope that

         12  the Mayor understands that while it's not impossible

         13  for a Manhattan member to be concerned about outer

         14  borough historic sites, certainly members from the

         15  outer boroughs have a greater likelihood to be

         16  concerned about their historic sites, and that the

         17  future appointments will take that into account and

         18  the Brooklyn members and the Queens members and the

         19  Bronx members, the Staten Island members shouldn't

         20  all be hold-overs, kind of waiting to see whether or

         21  not this Commission is going to continue to be

         22  Manhattancentric.

         23                 So, having said all that, I vote aye

         24  on all three items.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Just very

          7  briefly to explain my vote?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And request

         10  for a new microphone on this side for Staten Island.

         11  The Staten Island side.

         12                 I want to say to my friends who are

         13  advocates for historic preservation that once again

         14  you have advocated strongly for your beliefs and one

         15  of the great things of my tenure in the City Council

         16  is the friendship that we've developed over the last

         17  four and a half years. However, this is one where

         18  I'm not going to be with you, and simply because I

         19  believe that anyone who is presenting a case or

         20  argument or an application, all they can hope for is

         21  a decision maker who is intelligent, learned and

         22  fair, and through this hearing process today it is

         23  quite clear that Ms. Perlmutter has reached all of

         24  those, or possesses all of those qualities.

         25                 The one thing that concerns me is
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          2  that she doesn't live in Staten Island. Of course we

          3  know that.

          4                 And the other thing is, when I gave

          5  you a hypothetical, to assume that you represented

          6  that fictitious racing developing company MASCAR,

          7  you didn't say, oh I would never represent them.

          8                 By having said that, we wish you well

          9  and we'll see you quite often at the Commission. And

         10  I vote aye on all three items. And I want to thank

         11  the Chairwoman because there is no one else in this

         12  body who could have exhibited such calmness, grace,

         13  poise and intelligence in getting us through today.

         14  So, I want to thank you.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dickens.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you.

         20                 Madam Chair, just a moment to explain

         21  my vote?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: I have

         24  quietly and intently listened to the many

         25  testimonies on both sides with an open mind and an
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          2  awareness of the acute need to have an appointment

          3  to the Landmarks Preservation that protects the

          4  integrity of the Commission.

          5                 I have read Ms. Perlmutter's

          6  extensive resume, which is quite impressive, and

          7  beyond reproach.

          8                 I want to commend my chair because I

          9  want to take exception to something that I heard.

         10  This process is most inclusive and very transparent,

         11  proof of that being that all of the persons that

         12  came in to testify, no matter which side they were

         13  on, were allowed to do so. And that means that this

         14  process has been transparent.

         15                 My colleagues knew that we were going

         16  to stay here, whether it took one hour or ten hours,

         17  we would be here to listen to each and every

         18  person's testimony. And Ms. Perlmutter was forced to

         19  be here, as she should, to hear the testimony and

         20  give her an opportunity to give a statement to

         21  anything that was said.

         22                 Having recognized and said all of

         23  this, and having seriously weighed this nomination,

         24  I vote in support of Margery Perlmutter's

         25  appointment, with the proviso that she recuse
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          2  herself appropriately, which I believe she will.

          3                 And Chairman Tierney, you are charged

          4  with the responsibility to oversee and protect the

          5  integrity of the Landmark Commission, and that this

          6  Committee serves as a constant reminder that this

          7  Commission must always be ethically correct in all

          8  decisions that so strongly protects our City's

          9  heritage.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Garodnick.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye on all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'm sorry, Council

         14  Member Dickens, if you could just state for the

         15  record your vote?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: I said, I

         17  believe, that I vote in support of the appointment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And the other?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And aye on

         20  all.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

         25  temporarily excused to explain my vote?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: To my colleague

          4  from Staten Island, Mike McMahon, considering how

          5  well NASCAR and MASCAR pay their lobbyists, it's no

          6  wonder the applicant didn't say no right away.

          7  Fifteen grand a month to do absolutely nothing. So,

          8  I vote aye on all, and just say to Chairman Tierney

          9  that my yes vote is as much a yes vote for you and

         10  my belief in you, and the Administration, as it is

         11  for the qualifications of the applicant. Please

         12  don't let us down.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Speaker Quinn.

         14                 SPEAKER QUINN: Aye on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 15 in the

         16  affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         17  abstentions, all items are adopted. Council members,

         18  please sign the Committee report. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: This meeting is

         20  adjourned.

         21                 (The following written testimony was

         22  read into the record.)

         23

         24

         25  Written Testimony Of:
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          2  Annice Alt

          3

          4  City Council Hearing in re: Nomination of Landmarks

          5  Commissioner

          6

          7  May 24, 2006

          8

          9                 My name is Annice Alt, speaking as a

         10  longtime resident of New York City. First, I want to

         11  express my thanks to Councilmembers Lappin, Avella

         12  and Reyna for their proposal to increase the budget

         13  for the Landmarks Preservation Commission by

         14  $500,000, to help alleviate the heavy burdens on LPC

         15  staff.

         16                 I also wish to express my thanks to

         17  City Councilmember Reyna and the other

         18  Councilmembers for this opportunity to speak about

         19  the nomination of Margery Perlmutter to become a

         20  Commissioner on the Landmarks Preservation

         21  Commission.

         22                 When this hearing was postponed to

         23  give time for the Conflicts of Interest Board to

         24  rule on her possible service, I emailed

         25  Councilmember Reyna that the only more welcome news
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          2  would be the complete withdrawal of the nomination

          3  of Ms. Perlmutter. Now the Conflicts of Interest

          4  Board has ruled that she may serve provided she

          5  recuse herself every time her firm appears before

          6  the LPC.

          7                 Others have and will speak about the

          8  problems this would create for the Landmarks

          9  Preservation Commission, and I agree with those

         10  concerns. I will speak, if I may, on the problem

         11  that her appointment would create for the City

         12  Council itself.

         13                 The city Council is the legislative

         14  arm of city government, and the Council relies on

         15  the executive branch to carry out the laws the

         16  Council has enacted. The problem with Ms.

         17  Perlmutter's nomination is that she has made a

         18  profession of evading and finding loopholes in New

         19  York City's landmarks law, a law so important that

         20  its constitutionality has been affirmed by the

         21  Supreme Court of the United States.

         22                 Ms. Perlmutter could be called a

         23  "super expediter," but I apologize to all those

         24  honest expediters who uphold the law but simply try

         25  to move matters along more quickly through the

                                                            212

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  process. That is not what Ms. Perlmutter and her

          3  firm of Bryan Cave do; they seek to help their

          4  clients circumvent the landmarks law.

          5                 Does the City Council really want to

          6  set a precedent of approving a commissioner who

          7  makes a profession of eroding the very laws the

          8  Council has enacted? Does the chair of the Education

          9  Committee want DOE to be staffed with persons who

         10  want to circumvent laws the Council has passed about

         11  our schools? I believe that on mature reflection the

         12  Council will decide this would be a dangerous

         13  precedent, and that the Council will decide to

         14  request that the Mayor find a more suitable

         15  candidate for the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         16
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          4                 My name is James A. Trent, president

          5  of the Metropolitan Historic Structures Association,

          6  a preservation advocacy group founded in 30 years

          7  ago. We count among our institutional members, 102

          8  historic sites throughout the New York City

          9  metropolitan area.

         10                 New York City has been controlled by

         11  developers almost since its inception as a municipal

         12  entity. The layout of the street grid in Manhattan

         13  in 1811 was an early manifestation of the real

         14  estate industry's interests - a grid plan provides

         15  for the maximum amount of development potential, so

         16  a more beautiful plan of radial streets such as in

         17  Washington, D.C., was rejected. Who needs fountains

         18  and statues on triangles, when more row houses could

         19  be built on such wasted space?

         20                 But the nomination of Margery

         21  Perlmutter seems to be a new low, even for New York

         22  city. Exactly what qualifies this person for sitting

         23  on the LPC? She is not, according to research done

         24  by others, demonstrated a particular interest or

         25  sensitivity to the notion of saving historic
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          2  buildings or neighborhoods.

          3                 We are dismayed by stories we are

          4  hearing that the Bloomberg administration has said

          5  that even if the City Council provides more funds

          6  for the overworked Landmarks Preservation

          7  Commission, he will not spend it. Now we get a

          8  nomination of someone to site on the LPC who has no

          9  record of desperately need, but that even where

         10  designations exist, they are being whittled away by

         11  LPC decisions to support the construction of

         12  incompatible buildings such as the one in the

         13  Greenwich Village Historic District. This nomination

         14  will only reinforce a policy of hostility to

         15  preservation in New York City.

         16                 We urge the City Council to withhold

         17  confirmation of this nomination. We must preserve

         18  the beautiful and historic sections of our City.

         19  They are not expendable. These neighborhoods pay

         20  back to the City in terms of more stable

         21  neighborhoods and increased tourism, and in general

         22  raise the quality of life not only for those who

         23  live in them, but for all of us who delight in their

         24  existence.

         25                 Thank you for this opportunity to be
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          2  heard.

          3
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         10  Council Member Diana Reyna, Chair

         11  rules, Privileges & Elections Committee

         12  New York City Council

         13

         14  RE: Appointment of Margery H. Perlmutter

         15

         16                 Dear Chair Reyna,

         17                 I urge the Council to disapprove the

         18  appointment of Margery H. Perlmutter to the

         19  Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC). Ms.

         20  Perlmutter's record raises serious questions about

         21  her ability to serve objectively and independently

         22  in the role of Landmarks Commissioner.

         23                 As a land-use attorney and registered

         24  lobbyist on the Land Use Team of the law firm Bryan

         25  Cave LLP, Ms. Perlmutter often represents clients on
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          2  matters that require LPC review. The Bryan Cave

          3  website (ww.bryancave.com) states that Ms.

          4  Perlmutter's team appears "frequently before the New

          5  York city Landmarks Preservation Commission on

          6  behalf of clients seeking permission to alter

          7  protected properties or to develop in historic

          8  districts..." And that "clients expect and receive

          9  positive results." Lobbying records available online

         10  (www.nyc.gov/lobbyistsearch) identify Ms. Perlmutter

         11  as one of the lobbyists involved in targeting the

         12  LPC and other agencies on a number of prominent,

         13  controversial issues, some of which concerned the

         14  community board of which she was concurrently a

         15  member.

         16                 When she was appointed to Manhattan

         17  Community Board 8 in April 2001, and later to

         18  co-chair CB 8's Landmarks Committee, Ms.

         19  Perlmutter's law firm was actively lobbying the

         20  board on behalf of a client seeking to develop in

         21  the Carnegie Hall Historic District on the Upper

         22  East Side.

         23                 In addition, on December 8, 2005, Ms.

         24  Perlmutter signed a letter addressed from Bryan Cave

         25  to CB8 regarding an application by New
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          2  York-Presbyterian Hospital (attached). According to

          3  "A Handbook for Community Board Members," a

          4  document circulated by the Mayor's Community

          5  Assistance Unit, Ms. Perlmutter's action is

          6  expressly prohibited by the NYC Charter (Section

          7  2604(b)(6) and by Conflicts of Interest Board

          8  Advisory Opinion No. 96-4, which states, "A

          9  Community Board member who is a professional (e.g.,

         10  lawyer, architect, engineer) may not personally

         11  represent any party presenting a project or proposal

         12  for consideration to the Community Board on which he

         13  or she serves. A member's firm or business partners

         14  are not permitted to represent private clients

         15  before the member's Board." The Conflicts of

         16  Interest Board issued a waiver letter dated May 15,

         17  2006, permitting Ms. Perlmutter to serve on the LPC,

         18  apparently without considering Ms. Perlmutter's

         19  involvement on CB8 or her interactions with other

         20  board members on behalf of her firm's clients.

         21                 The more general issue at stake is

         22  the integrity of the LPC itself. Because the goals

         23  of her law firm - to win swift approval of all

         24  manner of development projects affecting landmark

         25  buildings - are directly at odds with a strong,
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          2  independent LPC, Ms. Perlmutter has a long-term

          3  professional interest in relaxing LPC standards.

          4                 This fundamental conflict of interest

          5  undermines her ability to make fair, balanced

          6  decisions on many if not most matters that appear

          7  before the LPC. And, at the very least, because of

          8  her firm's heavy emphasis on landmarks issues, it is

          9  conceivable that Ms. Perlmutter would be forced to

         10  recuse herself on a regular basis from LPC

         11  decisions, limiting the LPC's ability to achieve a

         12  quorum and reducing her effectiveness as a

         13  commissioner.

         14                 The nomination of Margery H.

         15  Perlmutter to the LPC underscores the need for

         16  standards to ensure that commissioners possess a

         17  basic preservation ethic, a sincere commitment to

         18  upholding New York's Landmarks Law and its goals,

         19  first and foremost, to sustain the beauty and

         20  quality of life in our city's historic

         21  neighborhoods. As the body officially empowered to

         22  confirm appointments to the LPC, the City Council is

         23  the primary guardian for securing that threshold

         24  expectation.

         25                 Ms. Perlmutter's track record appears
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          2  to be strongest in her efforts to put developer

          3  interests ahead of community concerns. Therefore, I

          4  urge the committee to disapprove her appointment.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 4:10 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 24th day of May 2006.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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         25

